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10
11

ITEM NO.1:

12

CHAIR KANE:

FY 2007 BUDGET (C.C. 06-31)

I'd like to call to order the Council's

13

Budget and Finance Committee meeting for April 3rd,

14

2006.

15

For the record, this morning we have in

16

attendance Members Tavares, Pontanilla, Molina,

17

Mateo, Kane.

18

will be Committee Member Carroll, and Members

19

Anderson and Hokama are excused.

20
21
22

23
24
25

Joining us a little later this morning

Members, we are going to continue our
discussion regarding our grants this morning.
Any opening remarks from Mr. Ginoza, our
Budget Director?
MR. L. GINOZA:

We'll start with Parks.

And when we're

ready, I'm going to ask the representative from
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5

Parks to come to the podium.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay, thank you.
Members, we're going to go ahead and move

3
4

forward with our public testimony phase of the

5

meeting.

6

signed up to testify -- well, let me back up one

7

moment and state if you have a cell phone or a

8

pager, like I took mine out already to turn it off,

9

if you can, please, turn it to the off or to the

Without objections, those of you who are

10

silent mode, that way we can avoid any unnecessary

11

interruptions to our meeting.
Today those of you signed up to testify,

12

13

we'll have you here at the podium.

When we call

14

your name, the first thing we'd like you to do is

15

please state your name for the record, and if you

16

represent an organization, we'd like to know that as

17

well.

18

four minutes.

19

inform you of that three minute time, and we'll ask

20

that you conclude your remarks in the additional

21

minute that you're given.

22

again be notified of that time frame, and at that

23

point we ask you if you're -- if you're still going,

24

to conclude that sentence and hold yourself

25

available for questions that the members may have of

We're going to provide you with a total of
At three minutes we're going to

At four minutes you'll
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6

your testimony.

2

Keep in mind that if you continue going after

3

the four minutes and are reminded of that four

4

minutes, we will try to be as polite as possible in

5

interrupting your testimony, letting you know that

6

your four minutes are up.

7

cooperation in that.
With that being said, Members, we'll go ahead

8
9

10

and proceed.

First person signed up to testify is

Randol Leach, to be followed by Helen Nielsen.

11
12

So we ask for your

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

MR. LEACH:

Good morning.

My name is Randol Leach, Vice

13

President of the Board of Directors of Aloha House.

14

I am speaking on behalf of Aloha House, Inc.

15

Recently we dropped off at each of the

16

Council Members' offices a letter describing our

17

need and a request for your financial support, which

18

I will summarize here.

19

letter was a DVD

20

the dormitories for which demolition and new

21

construction funds are being requested.

22

know, drug and alcohol abuse, especially ice,

23

crystal methamphetamine, has been continuously

24

identified as one of the most serious issues

25

affecting the citizens and families of Maui County,

Also included with the

senting a brief virtual tour of

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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1

and, therefore, a high priority for use of public

2

funds.
Aloha House,

3

Inc. is requesting $188,500 in

4

Fiscal Year 2007 funding, which is needed to

5

complete the replacement of two dilapidated

6

buildings located on County property on the old

7

Maunaolu College campus on Iki Drive and leased to

8

Aloha House for use as a residential treatment

9

facility for alcohol and drug rehabilitation.

10

In 2002, and again in 2003, CDBG (Community

11

Development Block Grant)

funds were awarded

12

totalling $295,000 to complete the demolition and

13

construction of the two buildings.

14

raised an additional 45,000 in private grants to

15

support the project.

16

architectural planning and Environmental Assessment

17

work was done in preparation for construction.

18

Building plans have already been submitted for

19

permit.

20

been completed and approved with the finding of no

21

significant impact, and we have received a notice to

22

proceed for completion of one of the two buildings,

23

that would be building B.

We had also

Over the past two years the

The required Environmental Assessment has

24

The estimated cost of construction of the two

25

buildings based on bids obtained within the past six
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1

months is $710,000.

We have been in contact with

2

the Weinberg Foundation and have been encouraged to

3

apply for their support.

4

fall within their guidelines and priorities.

5

However, Weinberg financial participation is limited

6

to 30 percent of the totaling project cost, which

7

would amount to $226,500.

8

of $188,500.

The project will appear to

This leaves a funding gap

We are looking to the County to request funds

9

10

to be earmarked in the Fiscal 2007 Budget to

11

complete the project in the immediate future for

12

many reasons.

13

need in our community, and we're literally bursting

14

at the seams in terms of persons needing and

15

requesting treatment.

16

not only replace dilapidated dormitories with

17

serious health and safety concerns, but will also

18

increase capacity by ten beds, up from 32 to 42

19

beds.

20

Substance abuse treatment is a great

This new construction will

Thank you so much for your continued support

21

of our partnership with Aloha House, Inc. and

22

addressing this critical need in our community.

23
24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Leach.
Members, any questions for Mr. Leach?

Mr. Mateo.
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9

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

2

Chairman, thank you very much.

Mr. Leach, good morning.

Just wanted to be

3

clear, your reference to the Weinberg Foundation and

4

their 30 percent, is that something that you have

5

from them?

6

that assures you that you will get that 30 percent?

7

MR. LEACH:

No.

Is there anything you have from them

They won't look at their 30 percent in --

8

if we need more detail, we could refer to Jud

9

Cunningham, our capable CEO who is in attendance

10

here.

My understanding is that once we have all the

11

other funding in place, then we can approach

12

Weinberg and it looks like that would be a go.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

14

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

Any further questions?

Mr. Leach, I know that in the Human Concerns

15
16

program under the Department of Housing and Human

17

Concerns, under Community Partnership Recipients,

18

Aloha House is listed for Fiscal Year '07 in

19

amount of $123,203.

20

not related to your request that you're asking for

21

this morning?

22
23
24
25

MR. LEACH:

Is this a separate item that's

I'm not privy to that, but Jud would probably

be able to answer that.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay, Mr. Cunningham, are you signed up this

morning to --
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MR. CUNNINGHAM:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

Okay, go ahead, if you can, Members, without

objection, just to respond to the question.

4

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

5

CHAI R KANE:

8
9

10

No objections.

Thank you.
Mr. Cunningham, if you can just identify

6

7

No.

yourself for the record.
MR. CUNNINGHAM:

Thank you.

No, those funds are -- it's

basically the same amount that we've received for
Jud Cunningham.

11

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

12

MR. CUNNINGHAM:

CEO, Aloha House.

Thank you.

The funds

13

that you referenced are for operating costs, and

14

we've received that support for several years now in

15

basically the same amount.

16

CHAIR KANE:

This is for capital.

Okay, so this capital request that you're

17

making is not located in the proposal that's before

18

us now.

19

MR. LEACH:

20

CHAIR KANE:

21
22
23
24
25

That's correct.
Thank you very much.
Members, any further questions for either

Mr. Leach or Mr. Cunningham?

Seeing none.

Gentlemen, thank you very much for your
testimony this morning.
Helen Nielsen, she'll be followed by John

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

BF 4/3/06

1
2

11

Blumer-Buell.
MS. NIELSEN:

Good morning, Council Chair Kane and Council

3

Members.

4

behalf of the Maui Coastal Land Trust, of which I'm

5

currently President this year, President of the

6

Board, and I'm here to ask for your support

7

specifically for an item that is in the Parks

8

Department budget.

9

My name is Helen Nielsen, and I am here on

If you refer to page 13-4, under Major Fiscal

10

Year 2007 Budget items, they refer to a grant

11

subsidy to the Maui Coastal Land Trust in the amount

12

of $86,000.

13

for Fiscal Year 2005.

14

purchased 277 acres in Waihee in June of 2004, and

15

at that point we were already six months past the

16

deadline to apply for the claim for charitable and

17

miscellaneous exemption for tax relief for this

18

property, being that it's held in conservation and

19

we plan to restore it

20

And what this is it's for a tax relief
Maui Coastal Land Trust

its natural state.

We have since been granted tax relief under

21

that exemption, and we currently pay a total of $180

22

per year, $60 per parcel.

There are three different

23

parcels, different sizes.

So because we missed

24

that -- that deadline for tax relief, it's just an

25

unfortunate timing issue, being that we bought the
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1

land in June and the deadline was December 31st of

2

the prior year.

3

this grant for $86,000, which would cover the taxes

4

for that year.

5

We would just write the check out to the County if

6

this grant were given to us.

7

helped us place it into the budget, and I hope to

8

get your support.

9

CHAIR KANE:

10
11

And the Mayor's Office

Thank you, Ms. Nielsen.

Hearing none.
Thank you very much --

13

MS. NIELSEN:

14

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
-- for your testimony.
John Blumer Buell.

15

17

So this would pretty much be a wash.

Members, any questions for Ms. Nielsen?

12

16

We are requesting that you grant us

He'll be followed by

Jocelyn Perreira.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL:

Good morning, Council Members.

My

18

name's John Blumer-Buell, and I'm out here from

19

Hana.

20

last Thursday regarding the Hamoa-to-Koali waterline

21

replacement that I'm here again.

22

meeting in Hana last Thursday evening, Councilmember

23

Bob Carroll told me there was no money in Fiscal

24

Year 2007 Budget for the proposed Hamoa-to Koali

25

pipeline replacement because the money is already in

I was so concerned about our meeting

Hana

After the public
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13

place and the job will be going out to bid soon.

2

Those statements contradict the public

3

record[ and attached to my testimony are three

4

exhibits.

5

by the Department of Water Supply showing the phases

6

from 2006[ 2007[ 2008[ 2009.

7

last year's Mayor's Budget Proposal [ $1.3 million

8

for hydrant -- from hydrant 42 to standpipe 23.

9

Exhibit 3 is two letters from the Hana Community

The first was supplied to the community

The second exhibit was

10

Association to Water Director George Tengan asking

11

for an Environmental Assessment.
The public record begs the following

12
13

questions:

14

Year 2006 Budget?

15

million needed according to Exhibit I?

16

proposed Hamoa-to-Koali waterline about to be put

17

out for bid by the Administration?

18

1

19

time-out while the issues are sorted out?

?

Where is the $1.3 million from Fiscal
Where is the additional $1.008
Is the

Is there a time

Will the Administration cooperate with a

20

Mayor Arakawa has already indicated his

21

willingness to discuss budget issues with you during

22

the budget process.

23

Tengan refused to answer the Hana Community

24

Association letters requesting an Environmental

25

Assessment?

Why has Water Director George

Mr. Tengan has stonewalled the
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1

community, obstructed the public's right to know the

2

facts, has committed a possible violation of the

3

Hana Community Association's civil rights and my

4

civil rights, has committed possible violations of

5

the State Sunshine Laws, and has behaved

6

unethically.
This type of behavior is not isolated to the

7
8

Water Department Director George Tengan.

9

pattern within the Arakawa Administration.

It is a
The Hana

10

Community Association and I have been stonewalled by

11

four major departments of Maui County government,

12

Department of Water Supply, Planning, Finance, and

13

Public Works and Environment.

14

your budget discussions, more employees will not

15

solve this type of intentional, obstructive

16

behavior.

17

community are at the cost of tens, perhaps hundreds

18

of million of dollars to the taxpayers of Maui

19

County.

20

MS. REVELS:

21

MR. BLUMER-BUELL:

For the purpose of

The implications of stonewalling the

Three minutes.
Please demand accountability from the

22

Administration.

I request an immediate and complete

23

public investigation of this situation by the Maui

24

County Council.

25

your budget discussions.

All of these issues are relevant to
Please put someone to work
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1

on it today.

2

before the Administration puts the proposed

3

Hamoa-Koali waterline out to bid.

The situation needs to be resolved

If the Administration will not cooperate, an

4

5

injunction is needed to allow the due process.

6

Perhaps you will need to hire an outside counsel.

7

Time is of the essence.

8

know.

9

open process, and that's all that I'm asking for and

The public has the right to

The public is entitled to a legal, fairer and

10

that's all the Hana Community Association is asking

11

for.

12

Thank you.

CHAIR KANE:

Members, any questions for our testifier this

13
14

Thank you, Mr. Blumer Buell.

morning?

15

Hearing none.

Mr. Blumer-Buell, thank you very much.

16

MR. BLUMER-BUELL:

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

19

Thanks a lot.

Next to testify is Jocelyn Perreira.

She'll

be followed by Mr. Burt Freeland.
MS. PERREIRA:

Good morning, Council Chair Kane, Council

20

Members.

Thank you for the opportunity that you are

21

providing to have people come forward and make known

22

their wishes and desires with the County budget.

23

name is Jocelyn Perreira.

24

Director and the Tri-Isle Main Street Program

25

Coordinator for the Wailuku Main Street Association,

My

I am the Executive
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16

Inc. Tri Isle Main Street Resource Center.
I'm here today to just briefly say that we

3

realize that you have the Office of Economic

4

Development here, also Planning Department, and I

5

think maybe Public Works.

6

aware that we work closely with these departments,

7

especially in trying to augment government services,

8

and we do support the

9

in -- with their community partners to try to, I

We do want you to be

- their efforts In working

10

guess, stretch the County dollars to get the most

11

for the communities, and that's something that we -

12

we will be continuing to work very hard and

13

diligently on.

14

Last week I gave all of you a packet for our

15

program.

Along with the packets came from each of

16

the towns a list of capital improvement project

17

requests.

18

you're taking up the capital improvement projects

19

this afternoon, I believe, so there is a handy list,

20

in case you were wondering what each of the

21

necessary capital improvement projects needed in

22

each community.

23

communities and active and proactive community

24

planning as it relates to the community plans and

25

the General Plan for the County.

That's the third section.

So I know

We do have a focus in each of these
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We are hard at work.

Everyone is working

2

very hard trying to stay focused on the issues that

3

is confronting you that is very frustrating and not

4

a quick fix situation, but we will be shortly coming

5

forward to you with our position statements on

6

issues that have come before the Council

7

consistently.

8

9

So I just would like to in conclusion just
relate some of my

- for instance, the Wailuku

10

capital improvement projects, and remind everybody

11

that the municipal parking -

12

municipal parking development in the municipal

13

parking lot is very, very important to Wailuku's

14

future, and we hope that with the Council's guidance

15

and direction, along with the Maui Redevelopment

16

Agency, that a pUblic-private partnership or some

17

other viable alternative can be brought together so

18

that this in fact can become a reality_

19

many property owners surrounding the area and

20

businesses

21

that, and that is something that we like to stay

22

very focused like a laser beam on.

the multi, multi-use

There are

the area that can only benefit from

23

Also, the lao Theatre Task Force report that

24

you have had submitted to you I think contains very

25

good and important information for you.
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1

MS. REVELS:

2

MS. PERREIRA:

Three minutes.
I can conclude shortly.

3

We do think that a police presence in Wailuku

4

is very! very helpful! especially night patrols with

5

the lights on can ensure more sense of safety.

6

This! likewise! is good

7

nice to have a walking foot patrolman on the street!

8

because it just gives an added presence of safety.

9

The beautification plans for Market Street!

10

which we've worked very hard on! is something that

11

we're all looking very much toward.

12

we need to look at maybe a Wailuku senior center! so

13

the seniors don't have to go all the way to Kaunoa

14

and they have a little regional thing.

15

Workday efforts and beautification is one of the

16

partners! along with us! is very! very good.

most of the towns.

It's

At some point

Community

Thank you for helping with the unsafe walking

17
18

conditions on Vineyard and Market.

19

that in our capital improvement request and you have

20

acted upon it and we thank you so much.

21

MS. REVELS:

22

MS. PERREIRA:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24
25

Last year we had

Four minutes.
Thank you for this opportunity.
Thank you! Ms. Perreira.
Members! any questions for Ms. Perreira?

Mr. Mateo.
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19

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman! thank you.

Good morning! Ms. Perreira.

2

3

MS. PERREIRA:

Good morning.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

The 2007 Budget request! your budget

5

request! the increase in your request! the 25!000

6

would service your program or enhance your program

7

how?

8
9

What is the intent of the --

MS. PERREIRA:

Well! basically last year we asked for the

same amount! and as you know across the board

10

everybody has had rising costs tremendously that's

11

affected the quality of staff and consultants that

12

you're able to get! if you're able to get them.

13

Everybody is so busy! and whereas we've been really

14

blessed and fortunate that we've had people come out

15

to do -- even when we do hire consultants! we get

16

them at a very! very good rate.

17

to continue working together with them to leverage

18

the County dollar to get the most for it.

19

that's basically where --

20

COUNCILMEMBER

21

cetera?

22

MS. PERREIRA:

~ATEO:

We have to be able

And

Okay, so in consultant services, et

I would say so.

Also you have to -

each

23

year we have different needs in different

24

communities.

25

doing their strategic plan! and I guess this will be

The Haiku area, for instance! they are
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1

the most intense -- this coming year will be the

2

most intensive part where we would have to hire more

3

consultants in that particular area.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

Thank you, Chairman.

Any additional questions for

Seeing none.

Thank you very much for your testimony.

8

MS. PERREIRA:

9

CHAIR KANE:

11

Thank you.

Ms. Perreira?

7

10

Thank you.

Thank you, Council Members.
Next to testify is Mr. Burt Freeland.

Mr. Freeland will be followed by Sandy Baz.
MR. FREELAND:

Chairman Kane and honorable Council

12

Members, my name is Burt Freeland, and for the past

13

30 years plus I've been the assistant to the medical

14

examiner for Maui.

15

for Council help in funding a new morgue for Maui.

16

I've testified before and had even legislation

17

introduced or a bill by

18

Morihara's time to the legislature.

This is not my first time asking

as far back as David

19

To give you a little background, prior to

20

1975 and up to 1975 the three mortuaries on Maui

21

rotated on a weekly basis in picking up and

22

transporting the remains of anyone in Maui County to

23

their mortuary, where an autopsy would be scheduled

24

at their convenience using their mortuary.

25

This was very difficult because it put the
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1

police at a severe disadvantage.

2

there when they were running a funeral or provide

3

the security of the remains.

4

got better.

5

at the way Maui's growing.

6

refrigerator we have is the refrigerator I illegally

7

had put in at the hospital.

8

refrigerator that was there collapsed and fell

9

apart.

10

In fact!

You couldn't be

The situation has not

it's exacerbated now! looking
You have to remember the

The two-body

Now! that two-body refrigerator was there

before my time! and I've been there 30 years.
Any tour ship that comes into Kahului Harbor

11
12

and anchors offshore has the same refrigerator! a

13

two-man refrigerator.

14

growing! we have space now for seven! and that's if

15

you're not too large so we can put two on the same

16

shelf.

17

fit through the door of the refrigerator and I've

18

had to tie ice bags over them.

With Maui's population ever

I've even had cases so large they wouldn't

My census there this morning is two

19
20

decomposed bodies, one awaiting DNA and one

21

unclaimed body! the last two since early February.

22

It's not unusual.

23

year.

24

remember I still bring all the bodies from Lanai,

25

and occasionally from Maui

I have kept them as long as a

But with Maui growing this way! you have to

[sic]!
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1

and those that die aboard flights landing in

2

Kahului.

3

and that of our transit population, and imagine my

4

seven-space refrigerator

5

MS. REVELS:

6

MR. FREELAND:

You take into consideration our population

Three minutes.
is dependent on what's the

- what your

7

size is.

I can only tell you without getting too

8

dramatic, you would not want any member of your

9

family in that refrigerator.

10

men's room in the lobby.

11

whole refrigerator in there.

12

from the Police Department.

It's smaller than the

In fact, you could put the
But you'll be hearing

I do ask you to remember what are the

13

14

niceties and what are the necessities.

15

taxpayers of Maui County deserve no better than to

16

have your consideration, and I ask you to call me if

17

you want to see what I'm talking about.

18

space for the police to work.

19

that we have to lay all sharp instruments down to

20

move in the room so we don't jab each other --

21

MS. REVELS:

22

MR. FREELAND:

23
24
25

Folks, the

There's no

It's so dangerous

Four minutes.
in the process.

Thank you.

And any

questions?
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Freeland.
Members, questions for Mr. Freeland?
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23

Ms. Johnson, followed by Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, I really appreciate you

3

coming to testify on behalf of I guess many of the

4

families that have had to go through this.
One of the things that I have to ask is it's

5
6

my understanding that the responsibility actually

7

for maintaining the morgue is the County's

8

responsibility, and that it actually is not the

9

State's responsibility.

10

11

Can you clarify if my

understanding is correct or not?
MR. FREELAND:

You're right.

HRS regulations in the 151

12

area say that the State hospitals will provide their

13

morgue space to the County coroner.

14

that means the Chief of Police ex officio.

15

hospital morgue is okay for the hospital.

16

don't have that many people that require the place.

17

The only time they need it is if the family wants an

18

autopsYI and they work with their family physician

19

and want one or if the person's family is, say, on

20

the mainland and this is a tourist.

21

notified, then it's a holding place.

22

Now, in Hawaii
The
They

Until they're

The Police Department has 90 percent of

23

everybody that passes through there and about 200

24

autopsies a year.

25

are there in transit, we're holding until we can get

You're not counting the ones that

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

BF 4/3/06

24

1

a hold of the attending physician to see if he's

2

willing to sign.

3

coming and going and doing autopsies.

4

So it's a madhouse of people

I know I'm not going to have friends when we

5

start doing the autopsy on the decomposed bodies,

6

because it's in the old section of the hospital.

7

The air conditioning is shared with the entire

8

hospital in the old area.

9

everybody else, Lanai North, but, you know, it's

10

11

That's obstetrics and

something that -- it's almost beyond time.
I will say in passing that I did resign New
The Police Department asked me to stay

12

Year's Eve.

13

on, that I've been after this so long.

14

you sign the paper, I'll probably be dead if it's

15

not approved this time, it's right.

16

Ms. Johnson.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And so when

Thank you,

And I really appreciate your at

18

least educating those of us that aren't familiar

19

with this.

20

with regard to the situation that you described

21

where you have I guess decomposing corpses, you

22

know, in an area that is I guess

23

viewing area where other members of the public come

24

or what do you do with those bodies when a loved one

25

comes in to view the remains of their family member?

One of the other questions I had, too,
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MR. FREELAND:

I did have a small glass viewing area that

2

was large enough for families and the police

3

chaplain or their own minister to have a small

4

private service there, but it was taken over by the

5

doctor for dictation.

6

I'm caught between the middle.

7

anybody in there and subject them to the odors r and

8

at the same time I'm caught wanting to satisfy

9

everyone.

So there is no place now.

So

I can't allow

The police chaplains want to be there to

10

assist families and the schools when they lose a

11

student r butr you know r there's no chairs.

12

stand around the body.

13

to faint and fall and hurt themselves sometimes r but

14

it's a very small place and --

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

You

I'm afraid someone's going

And I really appreciate that.

The

16

other thing r just so I understand r because I have

17

not r you know r taken that particular

18

taken you up on your offer to go visit the

19

facilities.

20

others who have had that, but one of the things that

21

I want to make sure of is when the visitors also

22

let's say someone passes away on a flight or

23

someone's a drowning victim r the visitors then have

24

that same experience.

25

somebody drowns and the family -- it takes days for

- you know r

l've only had them described to me by

And what do you do when
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1

them to actually get here on a flight to view their

2

loved one?

3

MR. FREELAND:

We hold them, and unfortunately families

4

are subjected to this because traffic fatalities

5

require that they be identified by the family by

6

coming in to view them.

7

that setting it just makes the situation worse for

8

the family.

9

help, but at that time I had an overflow and I

That's bad enough, but in

One of your constituents I did want to

10

couldn't provide privacy for them by having her come

11

there.

12

that walk-in built that holds seven, I spent my

13

weekends putting bodies on the floor in the

14

operating room and keeping them covered with ice.

And I will tell you that prior to me getting

15

The Police Department's done a wonderful job

16

with their visitor-oriented policing program, their

17

technicians.

18

we can all do a better job for our citizens.

19

We just need to give them the tools so

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah, and I do appreciate it.

In

20

fact it was that local incident with a woman who

21

lost her husband that I think has precipitated this

22

whole thing.

23

in there and at least trying to give us the

24

information about the conditions there.

25

very much.

So I really thank you for your hanging
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1

MR. FREELAND:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

4

7

8
9

Thank you.

Thank you.

Mr. Molina, followed by

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Good morning, Mr. Freeland.

5

6

Yes, ma'am.

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Freeland, we have more questions.

Mr. Freeland, come.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

You're a popular man this morning,

Mr. Freeland.

10

MR. FREELAND:

Everybody likes a little CSI, I guess.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Mr. Freeland, in lieu of the $4

12

million proposed by the Mayor for this project, were

13

there any other proposals considered?

14

MR. FREELAND:

Actually, I'm not privy to that.

That

15

would be the Department, who I imagine will be

16

along, but they just wanted me to give my manalo,

17

since I've been there longer than anybody else over

18

there.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay, I can get that information

20

later.

One more question.

You know, you mentioned

21

the concern about the space at the hospital in terms

22

of accommodating the bodies.

23

place if we do have, you know, an accident or a

24

disaster in which you're going to have

25

potentially could have a multiple amount of bodies?

What do we have in
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1

Does the hospital have the space for a temporary

2

morgue to expand?

3

MR. FREELAND:

The hospital has an old Matson container.

4

It's a refrigerated container that they keep dirty

5

needles and syringes in until they get a container

6

full and then can fill a container to ship to Oahu

7

for destruction, but now, they would have to empty

8

that container to put bodies in it, and it's way off

9

in the back by the nursery.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

11

Chairman.

12

CHAIR KANE:

15
16
17

Okay, thank you.

Thank you,

Thank you, Mr. Molina.
Ms. Tavares.

13

14

So

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
was going to ask.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Mr. Molina asked the question I
Thank you.
Any further questions for

Mr. Freeland?
Mr. Freeland, I have one or two questions.

18

19

MR. FREELAND:

20

CHAIR KANE:

Sure.
The current location of where you're working

21

at is where, just so the public understands where

22

you're at?

23

MR. FREELAND:

In the hospital?

The morgue is to the rear, and it's

24

actually right next door to the kitchen.

25

always nervous about the flies communicating between
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1

the morgue and the kitchen.

And you have to

2

remember very shortly the hospital -- the hospital

3

cafeteria will be open for the public, and it's just

4

a bad situation.
In December the morgue was on the blueprints

5
6

in the parking structure of the hospital.

7

I asked him who designed that in front of the

8

hospital, rather than somewhere in the back, it

9

quickly disappeared.

10
11

And when

So at this time it doesn't

appear on any hospital plans anymore.
CHAIR KANE:

The other question

- actually, brief

12

statement is you have a nice picture in the Honolulu

13

Advertiser today, sir.

14

but you and Dr. Manoukian are -- are there.

15

there's a good story, Members, in the Advertiser

16

this morning that gives a little more detail to the

17

situation.

I don't know if you saw it,
Anyway,

One of the questions I guess is the location

18
19

of a new facility or an existing facility that can

20

be convert

21

Is it from a location perspective more appropriate

22

to have it closer to the hospital or is there a

23

location that would be a preference to you?

24

your comments to that?

25

MR. FREELAND:

into a facility to assist you folks.

What's

The hospital will continue to have their
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1

morgue.

2

with the County.

3

behind that no matter what our plight is.

4

the Department's eyeing the Clinical Labs of Hawaii

5

building in The Millyard, and it was constructed as

6

a lab.

7

refrigerator for decomposed bodies, and one that

8

will hold other bodies.

9

installed a refrigerator that holds 25.

10

They have it already.

It's nothing to do

They're not going to put 5 cents
I think

Everything's in place except putting a

Ballards and Normans just
I just

can't imagine this County with nothing less.

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

MR. FREELAND:

13

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Freeland.

Appreciate it.

Thank you.
Thank you for your comments.
Next person to testify, Members, is Sandy

14
15

Baz, and he is our final person signed up to

16

testify.

17

at least until our first break time.

18

Good morning, Mr. Baz.

19

MR. BAZ:

And the Chair will keep it open until

Good morning, Chair Kane and Committee Members.

20

My name is Sandy Baz.

I'm the Executive Director

21

for Maui Economic Opportunity.

22

wanted to provide you the detailed information given

23

to your clerk on -- for our transportation grant, as

24

you are reviewing that, please just -- this is the

25

background information of what we requested as it

Real short.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524 2090

I just

BF 4/3/06

31

1

relates to our transportation operations and a new

2

transportation baseyard.

3

CHAI R KANE:

4

MR. BAZ:

5

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.
Members, before I ask you if you have any

6

questions, Mr. Baz as well as Mr. Leach provided

7

copies of testimony; however, there weren't enough

8

to distribute at this time.

9

once we have the time to get those things copied,

10

So we'll make sure that

we'll get them to each of you.

11

In that

with that being said, any

12

questions for Mr. Baz at this time?

13

Thank you very much for your testimony.

14

MR. BAZ:

I apologize for that .
.

15

16
17

Hearing none.

CHAIR KANE:

.

. END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .

No, that's okay.
Members, at this time we don't have anybody

18

else signed up to testify.

19

the room that has not testified that would like to,

20

now is your opportunity to come forward?

21

Is there anybody here in

Okay, seeing nobody' approach, Members, we'll

22

go ahead and proceed with this morning's

23

continuation of the grants.

24

Mr. Ginoza, our Budget Director, stated that the

25

Parks Department is ready to come forward.

And I believe
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1

invite our Deputy, Mr. John Buck, to come forward

2

and provide us with some opening remarks to the

3

proposals of grants through the Parks and Recreation

4

Department.

5
6

Good morning, Mr. Buck.
MR. BUCK:

Good morning, Chair Kane.

I really don't have

7

any opening comments.

8

regards to the grants.

9

grants that we have this year to go through our

10

Department will be the Maui Coastal Land Trust,

11

which is basically $6,000 [sic] To assist the land

12

trust in regards to some tax obligation that they

13

must payoff for the purchase of the property.

14
15

16
17
18

CHAIR KANE:

1111 just answer questions in

Basically the only real new

Mr. Buck, that's the only item for your

Department?
MR. BUCK:

We also have the Workline program that we give

monies to.

There's a change from last year versus

s year in working with the MCCC.

They have been

19

unable to provide the correction officer that's

20

requi

21

having an additional Workline this year, has not

22

become into fruition.

23

to do a Workline.

So we had anticipated

In talking in discussions with the State,

24

they're short staffed over at the prison and they

25

probably will not provide an additional Workline for
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1

the next upcoming budget, so we have cut that grant.

2

The other grant we have is the Lahaina

3

Restoration Foundation.

It's the same as the last

4

few years, or the one -

it's the Lahaina

5

Restoration Foundation.

They take care of Front

6

Street, the banyan tree, the maintenance.

7

pretty standard throughout the years.

8

one is the skateboard park management services.

9

We're asking for a tremendous increase of about

That's

And the other

10

80,000, because it's costing the -- over the years

11

we're finding out it's costing the grantees -- the

12

grantees more than what we've been providing for the

13

management of the skateboard parks.
We are running into some problems down in

14
15

certain areas just as far as just the management of

16

them.

17

problems just from attitudes and a few other issues,

18

vandalism, so has put a tremendous burden on the

19

Boys & Girls Club who does the grant this year.

20

it's been basically

21

was having in previous years.

24
25

Department.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

And

same problems that the YMCA

That covers all the grants for our

22
23

South Maui been experiencing a lot of

Mr. Ginoza, are you able to

provide us with reference points for the various
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1

requests throughout the Budget documents, both

2

Budget Details as well as the Program Budget?

3

you prepared at this time or

4

MR. L. GINOZA:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

I'm not prepared.

I will get that.

Okay, it would help, yeah, for our future

discussions to have reference points for us.
Members, any questions for Mr. Buck regarding

7

8

any of the mentioned items?

9

Mr. Pontanilla.

10

Are

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Mr. Mateo, followed by

Chairman, thank you very much.

Mr. Buck, good morning.

11

To follow up on the

12

skate park request, the apparent requested amount,

13

112, that is to take care of two skate parks?

14

MR. BUCK:

For right now, but we're also working to see

15

the possibility of doing something on Molokai, but

16

we have to work with the grantees as far as -- as

17

far as what's the actual cost, but we already know

18

that even though they're getting 32,000, we know

19

that it's costing them a heck of a lot more money

20

just in manpower.

21

And that's something we can discuss at a

22

later time with -- with the grantees in order to

23

come up with some additional funding for Molokai for

24

maybe the Boys & Girls Club -- I mean not the Boys &

25

Girls Club, Molokai Youth Center, which would
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1

probably be the most practical, because it will be

2

within the area and they can probably provide a

3

little bit better management because they are there

4

on property already, and, you know, it might make a

5

little bit more sense work it into their programs.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Yeah, the 112, is that a high

7

estimation in terms of what might be needed to

8

repair?

9

take care of the Molokai skate park as well?

10

MR. BUCK:

Because would there be enough funds to also

I cannot answer that question right now,

11

Mr. Mateo, but for the simple fact that, you know,

12

there is the grantees, even though the previous

13

grantees are saying 32,000 isn't enough to run the

14

two parks, just because they're -- what they're

15

get -- they're trying not to expend a lot of

16

additional dollars that they are, but down in south,

17

you know, when you pay somebody not too much of a

18

salary to work a part-time basis and take an abuse

19

that

20

they've been having some real staffing issues down

21

there.

22

monitors have been taking down there,

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay, thank you.

23

And, Mr. Chair, just one last question.

24

With the Workline being lost, how many lines

25

is that?

How many Worklines are we losing?
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MR. BUCK:

We are actually -- it's not we're losing one.

2

It's just we're trying

- you know, last year we

3

requested the additional funding to bring an

4

additional one to address the increased needs of

5

beach access cleaned on a regular basis and the

6

medial strips and bike paths and a few other areas.

7

Unfortunately, working with the State, they haven't

8

been able to come up with additional Workline.

9

that's the reason why we have cut back on the

So

10

request for this upcoming year.

11

but they're like some of the other State agencies,

12

they're really short staffed and having a hard time

13

recruiting.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

17

Okay, thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

15

16

They are trying,

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Mateo.
Mr. Pontanilla, before I recognize you,

18

Members, this was handed out I believe last Friday.

19

So you should have this with you,

20

and we1re on Parks, which is on the backside of the

21

first page, which provides us the list.

22

question earlier to Mr. Ginoza is hopefully we can

23

get in future discussions also reference points, in

24

addition to the actual name of the program.

25

whatever help we can get.
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Mr. Pontanilla, thank you.

1

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

Just trying to get some clarification

3
4

regarding the Maui Coastal Land Trust.

5

heard you say 6,000.

6

we're looking for as far as tax relief for that

7

organization?

8
9

10

MR. BUCK:

I thought I

Is it 86,000 or 6,000 that

I said 86,000, but maybe -- I'm trying to get

the mouth working this morning, and that's in
reference to -- of page 11-7 on the Budget.

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

12

MR. BUCK:

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

14

So it is 86,000?

That's correct.
Okay, fine.

As far as the skate park in Keopuolani, can

15

you go over again as far as the increase in funding?

16

It seems like it's going to cover only that one

17

skate park.

18

MR. BUCK:

From my understanding, what is proposed right

19

now is to give a 40 -

basically if you split them

20

in half, was to give 40,000 more for the South Maui

21

skateboard park and 40,000 more for Keopuolani.

22

Because of the design of the skate parks,

23

unfortunately, we have to have it fenced off and

24

have monitors because the height limitations in

25

regards to liability.
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1

While the Department's -- the Department's

2

goals in the future when we look at either redoing

3

skateboard parks and building a new one, that we're

4

going to take into consideration not to have -- to

5

look seriously at the height.

6

like they've been doing in the mainland, just have

7

them open and they close and the people use them at

8

their own risk.

9

rules as far as at least having their helmet on,

That way they can --

Hopefully that they'll follow the

there's not necessarily -- really

10

that they don't

11

need to have a full-time monitor there.

12

be closed when the park actually closes, instead of

13

having separate hours as the skateboard parks have

14

now in regards to the park operating hours.

15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

18
19
20

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

16

17

And they'd

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Mr. Molina, followed by Ms. Tavares and

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Good morning, Mr. Buck.

So the

21

proposed increase will go -- will this go more

22

towards hiring additional staffing and expanding

23

hours or is it to make actual improvements to these

24

two parks and possibly Molokai?

25

the people who are currently managing it, the way I

I ask that because
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1

read this, it would seem like they need this

2

additional funding to better manage the park, and

3

you mentioned attitude in your opening comments.

4

say this in light of an email that we received.

5

guess it was basically a complaint of an incident

6

that happened at Keopuolani Park.

7

trying to kind of connect everything together.

8
9

MR. BUCK:

I
I

So I'm just

To answer your question, there is a little bit

of everything to answer your question.

I should

10

back -- I don't know if it's the same email that I

11

received, but there was a complaint about -- about

12

being helmet-less.

13

from somebody who's in the 10th grade.

14

parks on Maui, from way back when they were -- the

15

old slabs, where the old Quonset huts used to be,

16

that's where our first skateboard park -- we always

17

required helmets, and that was because way back then

18

there was really -

19

laws at the time.

20

they were required to wear helmets and pads.

21

Well -- and I understand it was
Skateboard

had to do with the liability
So when we had those monitored,

There's no difference between now and then.

22

It's just that there are people who refuses to wear

23

helmets.

24

it's real prevalent in South Maui, there's a group

25

that don't want to use helmets.

And those who do skate in the parks
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1

use the -- follow the rules, so their alternative

2

has been to vandalize the park so we close it so

3

when it's closed they go in after hours while it's

4

closed to do what they want to do without the

5

helmets, the pads, and not following the rules, and

6

that's one of the challenges that we've had in South

7

Maui.

8

We do not want to close the skateboard park

9

because there's a lot of good kids that like to do

10

that type of activity and they're good kids.

11

They're just -- they're the type that likes to do

12

things like that, but there's

13

there's some that just -- you know, like anything

14

else, people are not supposed to drink and drive and

15

they drink and drive.

16

skateboard park.

17

in South Maui that attitude's been really more

18

prevalent than, say, in Central

19

Central has been the more established, so a lot of

20

the kids are used to the operations.

21

unfortunately

It's the same thing with the

And one of the challenges has been

I

because the one in

The South Maui one is fairly new.

Because of

22

the design

23

and some problems, so it's been basically closed

24

more -- it's been closed more often than, say,

25

Keopuolani.

l

we are having some maintenance issues

So there's an opportunity for those
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1

users to go there after hours when it's closed to

2

use it and we've had some reports of people actually

3

getting hurt because they're using a facility that's

4

closed at night.

5

The actual cost from -- even when the YMCA

6

had it a few years back and the Boys & Girls Club

7

now, it's costing them more money to monitor them

8

than the actual grant, especially for two sites.

9

it was maybe just for one site, the 32,000 may just

If

10

cover the monitoring, but then the County -- and the

11

County does kick in a lot for the repairs and the

12

maintenance of the facilities.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay, so this -- you believe the

14

80,000 will help mitigate the vandalism and I guess

15

help augment the grantee's costs as well, yeah?

16

MR. BUCK:

I think it's more to help the grantee's costs,

17

the actual cost of monitoring it.

18

said, in the future, when we do build the parks,

19

we're going to look at the design factors, where we

20

won't have to have a monitor.

21

the same hours as the parks, which may alleviate a

22

lot of the problems.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

It would be open as

Okay, thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

24
25

But then, like I

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Ms. Tavares, followed by
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Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.

I want to go back to

3

the Maui Coastal Land Trust appropriation, and maybe

4

you can answer this question.

5

are not just forgiving the tax bill for this group?

6

Because according to their situation, their timing

7

is

8

that they purchased the land, which was past the

9

deadline for applying for tax relief -- maybe you're

But why is it that we

- it's because they are dependent on the time

10

not the right person to answer this question.

11

just got stuck in your budget -- not stuck, placed

12

in your budget to accommodate.

13

about the background as far as has there been real

14

property tax appeals or have they talked to the Tax

15

Department or anything like that?

16

of that stuff?

17

MR. BUCK:

It

Do you know anything

Do you know any

I don't know about the whole history behind it,

18

that there was the request for the grant to toss out

19

the cost, so the -- it was put in our budget just to

20

be the Department who administers the grant.

21

further clarification, 1111 leave it to Lloyd.

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MR. L. GINOZA:

The

Mr. Ginoza.
It's my understanding that the Maui

24

Coastal Land Trust did approach the Real Property

25

Tax Division, and according to the Maui County Code,
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1

there's really no provision for relief of taxes r and

2

the appeals board is really for current taxes and

3

not for prior year's taxes.

4

relief really wasn't available through the Maui

5

County Coder as we understood it.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So the avenue for tax

And are you aware of anyone in the

7

Administration perhaps looking at our Maui County

8

Code to offer an amendment that would give some

9

flexibility with proper authorization for some cases

10

like this to be handled?

11

MR. L. GINOZA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

14
15

16

I'm not aware of any.
Okay.

I won't go there.

Thank

you.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank your Ms. Tavares.
Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes r and this is going back to the

17

skate park issue again.

The previous -- I don't

18

think it was last budget year r but the previous

19

budget year we had had money I think for just a

20

street course for West Maui, and it was specifical

21

proviso just for a street course so we wouldn't have

22

this continual issue with monitors.

23

there's no current amount of money in the budgetr

24

but because this is continuously a problem with the

25

monitors r is your Department looking at trying to

I know that
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1

provide some kind of relief from having to have the

2

monitors by offering the street courses as an option

3

or a possible alternative and maybe using even our

4

Workline crew to help build these kind of

5

facilities?

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

MR. BUCK:

Mr. Buck, are you prepared to respond?
One of the issues -- and I don't think it was

8

brought up at the meeting in Kihei last week, but

9

there is a push to look at moving or rebuilding the

10

one in South Maui.

11

location of that current park, because it's kind of

12

way hidden in the back.

13

they built it, you had the house and a few other

14

things in front of it and that's where they stuck

15

it, and that's way time back.

16

that because of its location, it's kind of hidden

17

from the road or the parking lot, so there is some

18

issues about the police being able to take a look at

19

it.

20

A lot of it has to do with the

And that's because when

But we're noticing

The other problem with the design is -

I had

21

thought at the time is that they have a lot of

22

wooden structures, and the purpose behind the wooden

23

structures at the time was the fact that it was

24

supposed to be every couple years you change the

25

wooden structures a little bit to change the course.
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1

Well! what's happening is the wood just gets torn up

2

real easy! and that's been probably one of the

3

highest maintenance of the course is the one in

4

Kihei.

5

The Keopuolani! the new street course is

6

basically almost maintenance free except for the

7

vert ramp, which is made out of wood.

8

future!

9

them taking in the height considerations and making

In the

if we do design them! we're going to design

10

them maybe all concrete.

11

more and more skate parks! say! in the mainland! but

12

they're all made out of concrete.

13

courses typically and they're being operated -

14

don't know with the new -- there's some changes in

15

the liability laws last couple years! but that's

16

something we need to research! but I know that in

17

the mainland they're basically open -- when the

18

park's open, you skate on it.

19

Because they are building

They're street
I

They do have rules posted that you still need

20

to wear your helmets and pads.

They have the park

21

rangers or the Police Department come around and

22

just remind everybody if -

23

helmets.

24

really have a lot of monitors! and those groups that

25

do have -- do use it! like say like your Boys &

that they have to wear

But they're basically not -- they don't
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1

Girls Club or the YMCAs or other use organizations,

2

they use them more for programming or special

3

events, that's when they get involved.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah, and my reason for asking the

5

question is primarily because if we're increasing

6

our expenses on the monitors because there is

7

vandalism or there's other liability issues with

8

regard to helmet, pads, all these other things,

9

which really have to do with the enforcement of what

10

our liability is with those vert ramps, my whole

11

thrust is that if -- and there was legislation

12

passed that did give relief.

13

money for the street courses.

14

That's why we put in

But if that is where the increase is coming

15

in terms of the escalating costs, then I'm trying to

16

figure out why it is, then, that we're increasing or

17

continuously upping the kind of budget expenditures

18

that we have when we have this other option

19

available.

20

money to initially put in the street course, but if

21

it can maintain or if it can at least hold the line

22

in terms of not increasing our costs on the

23

maintenance side or on the monitor side, then I'm

24

trying to determine why your Department is, you

25

know, kind of going in another direction, it would

Granted it might cost a little bit of
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So if you could address that, Mr. Buck.

appear.
MR. BUCK:

I don't think we're trying to go in a different
I'm not really familiar with the design

3

direction.

4

of the Keopuolani Park.

5

think there's some areas where it's more than four

6

feet above the ground, and I think that's where the

7

monitoring comes in and with the fencing.

8

familiar with the one in South Maui, because I was

9

around for a long time down there.

There are some height -- I

I'm quite

The plan is --

10

in the long run is basically to replace it so we

11

wouldn't have to monitor that park, and that's been

12

the big talk.

13

$250,000 investment to do it right,

14

because the current park in South Maui was about a

15

quarter of a million dollars by the time the County

16

grants -- or even more by the time the grants and

17

some of the fund-raising efforts of the community at

18

the time.

19

But we're talking about, you know, a
or even more,

But, unfortunately, they went with wood with

20

in mind that they'd change the configuration, but

21

more and more it's all basically concrete.

22

of building the areas up, you'll actually dig down

23

into the ground to get

24

drop off like the big bowls with the big drop-offs.

25

There's more slanting, so you get away from the

- they don't have the big
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four-foot vertical drop.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

The other questions I have,

3

Mr. Chair, are basically having to do with CIP in

4

parks when we get to that point, so I'll put those

5

in writing.
Thank you, Mr. Buck.

6

7

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, thank you, Ms. Johnson.
Any further questions in this area with the

8
9
10

Parks request, Members?

One more time?

Seeing

none.

11

Mr. Buck, thank you very much.

We appreciate

12

your -- if there's any additional questions, we'll

13

make sure the Committee gets it to Mr. Ginoza and

14

pass it on to the Department.

15

MR. BUCK:

Thank you, Chair.

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

MR. L. GINOZA:

Okay, Mr. Ginoza.
Yes, the next item on the -- for the

18

grants would be Office of Economic Development.

19

They'll be coming up.

20

page 1 and 2 on the handout that was given out on

21

Friday

22

OED?

23

CHAIR KANE:

Their grants are listed on

- on Thursday, I'm sorry.

Okay.

Can I defer to

Members, we have this morning with us

24

our Economic Development Coordinator out of the

25

Office of the Mayor, Ms. Lynn Araki Regan.
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Ms. Araki-Regan, if you can, please,

2

introduce your resource personnel next to you and

3

provide us with some opening remarks prior to

4

proceeding.

5

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

Good morning, Chair Kane and Committee

6

Members.

With me I'm very pleased to have

7

Agricultural Specialist Kenneth Yamamura; Small

8

Business Advocate Anna Ribucan; and also seated

9

behind you is Economic Development Specialist Eric

10

Barsatan.

I believe also in the audience we have

11

the Maui Redevelopment Agency Manager, Wayne Steel.

12

So thank you for joining me today.
The Office of Economic Development is

13
14

requesting an increase in grants for your Fiscal

15

Year 2007 Budget consideration.

16

don't make this request of the Council lightly.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Please know that we

Chairman, we should take a break

18

until we can clear up the static that's on the sound

19

system.

20

CHAIR KANE:

Go ahead.

Brief recess, Members.

You know

21

what, why don't we go ahead and take our morning

22

recess now, Members.

23

that way we can get set and (inaudible) and we'll

24

take care of public testimony when we get back.

25

Okay, Members, meeting in recess until 10:25.

We'll take 15 minutes, and
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(Gavel) .
10:09 a.m.

2

RECESS:

3

RECONVENE:

4

CHAIR KANE:

10: 26 a.m.

(Gavel).

Okay, Members! we'll reconvene.

5

This is the April 3rd Budget and Finance Committee

6

meeting.

7

Members! before we proceed with the Office of

8

Economic Development! a couple of things.

First,

9

during the recess we took a look at the sound

10

issues! and it's been determined that we don't have

11

the capability of taking it away or fixing it at

12

this time! but we're going to do every effort to

13

tolerate and move forward with the existing

14

conditions.

15

understanding in trying to proceed forward.

16

So, please, I ask for your patience and

Second, we have one other person signed up to
I'd like to invite him forward.

And

17

testify.

18

before I do that, if there's anybody else, again,

19

who -- here in the chamber who has not had a chance

20

to testify, now is your opportunity to sign up.

21

will be closing testimony once we finished all the

22

persons testifying.

23

We

With that, Mr. Shepherd, please come forward.

24

State your name for the record.

25

total of four minutes.

And you have a

We'll let you know at three
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1

minutes and again at four minutes when your time is

2

up, and remain for questions.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

3

4

MR. SHEPHERD:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

MR. SHEPHERD:

Good morning.
Good morning.
Good morning, Council people.

Name is

7

Glenn Shepherd.

President of Wailuku Heights, as

8

they call it.

9

year to complain about the $3 3/4 million that is in

I'm here specifically as I was last

10

the budget to the Maui Visitors Bureau.

11

it was 3 1/2 million.

12

them 3 3/4 million.

13

Why do we need to have somebody, some organization

14

try and sell tourism to Maui?

15

ridiculous.

16

hanky-panky, but we don't need to sell Maui on about

17

tourism.

18

too many touri running around.

19

impact the life style of Mauians who have lived here

20

for a long time.

21

Last year

Now they're going to give
And that gnaws on sensibility.

It's absolutely

It's just a ploy for maybe a lot of

It does it itself.

And we've probably got
It's starting to

Now, the ridiculous part of it is that the

22

tourist business, according to some high mucky-muck

23

economist from Honolulu, says it's a $3 1/2

24

billion -- a billion dollar business on Maui.

25

why should we be giving the Visitors Bureau $3 3/4
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1

million?

2

put up the money?

3

care of in this County that need -- that are

4

desperately needed, and to fritter it away with the

5

Visitors Bureau trying to get more tourists over

6

here is absolutely ridiculous.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you very much.

Thank you, Mr. Shepherd.
Members, any questions for Mr. Shepherd?

9

10

We've got so many things to take

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .

7

8

Why doesn't the tourist industry itself

Seeing none.

11

Thank you very much for your testimony.

12

Final opportunity, anyone here signed up or

13

wishing to testify, now's your chance.
Seeing nobody approach, Members, without

14
15

objections, we'll close testimony for today's

16

meeting.

17

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

20
21

No objections.

Thank you.

Public testimony is now closed.

Good morning, Ms. Lynn Araki-Regan.

You have

the floor, ma'am.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

Good morning, Chair Kane and Committee

22

Members.

As I said earlier, the Office of Economic

23

Development is requesting an increase in this year's

24

Fiscal Year 2007 grants section of our budget.

25

Please know that, you know, we don't make this
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1

request to the Council lightly.

2

and discussion was made, and, you know,

3

consideration was given to each grantee's needs for

4

such funds and the extent to which their grant

5

request assists our office's efforts in promoting a

6

sustainable economic development program for Maui

7

County.

8

9

Careful evaluation

My staff and I have worked closely with
various nonprofit grantees as well as prospective

10

grantees in assessing the services that they

11

provide.

12

advisory team member, and have carefully reviewed

13

the grant requests to ensure that they are in line

14

with Focus Maui Nui strategies for action.

15

I have also served as the Focus Maui Nui

Again,

I reiterate that great care and

16

consideration were given before asking the Mayor and

17

now the Council to consider allowing the increase in

18

our office's grants budget.

19

plays an integral role in developing specific

20

sections of the budget, as I mentioned earlier, you

21

know, I have Small Business Advocate Ribucan,

22

Economic Development Specialist -- Ag Specialist

23

Yamamura, and Economic Development Specialist

24

Barsatan with me today to answer any questions that

25

they be more familiar with in answering.

As entire OED staff
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1

Finally! to give you an updated overview of

2

our office! I prepared this one-page informational

3

sheet! which I hope you'll find it of interest as

4

well as helpful for you in your deliberations over

5

the next couple of weeks.

6

distribution.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Taguchi! if you can get that! please.

8

Thank you.

9

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

10

CHAIR KANE:

So I have this for

That's it! Chair.

Thank you.
Members! we'll get this sheet distributed to

11

In the meantime! we'll go ahead and open it

12

you.

13

up for questions.

14

and about half of page 2 for the total OED grant

15

request.

16

last year.

17

that have been completed! so there are some

18

variations and they are listed in the -

19

final column to show the changes in the request.

20

Opening questions?

21

Members! we have all of page 1

Included we have proposals that mirror
I think we have a few new ones! some

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

almost the

Ms. Tavares.
Mr. Chair, could we just go

22

through them in order so we don't jump allover the

23

place and see if there are questions that come up?

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

We can do it that way! if that's the pleasure

of the Committee.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

The other way to do it is just

2

look at the ones that have the variances and talk

3

about those in order too.

4

down the list.

5
6

CHAIR KANE:

My question is sort of

Okay, we can go ahead and do that.
Members, without objections, we'll go -- move

7

through the list as it's listed on page 1.

We'll

8

start from the top.

9

remaining flat, Aloha Week Festivals, Aqua Marine

We have Agricultural Promotion

10

Resource Development, and Business Research

11

Library -- which I believe we received some

12

testimony at the public meetings of an additional

13

$5,000 -- Cane Top utilization has gone away, and

14

the Centennial Celebration I believe was a one time.

15

We'll stop there, Members.

16

the first five or six of them?

17

question.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Any questions in

Ms. Johnson,

My only question would be because,

19

you know, we've got some old things on there, like

20

the agricultural processing plant, which is listed

21

but it doesn't have any -- hasn't had any money for

22

a while, I just want to find out, you know, is it

23

something that is still alive but in another part of

24

the budget?

25

my primary question on that area.

You know, is it funded?
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1

MS. ARAKI -REGAN:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

MR. ARAKAWA:

Chair.

Ms. Araki-Regan.
Okay, with regards to the agricultural

4

processing plant, there was a letter that was sent

5

to the County Council dated March 11th, 2005 which

6

explains the status of the project at that point.

7

What happened was in -- we came before you probably

8

a year or two ago on this.

9

because of the substantial increase in construction

What happened was

10

costs, we weren't able to meet the requirements that

11

the U.S. Economic Development Administration, EDA,

12

required of us before the given deadline that they

13

had set.
And so what happened was we got a portion of

14
15

the monies that we have spent reimbursed by EDA, but

16

what we decided to do in talking with the ag

17

industry was to

18

from the State to the County, so now it's in the

19

County's hands, what we did was we went through an

20

RFP probably about six months or so ago for the

21

County to enter into a long term lease, 15-year

22

period for the ag industry to be able to lease the

23

place.

24
25

because it was executive ordered

And the only bidder who came through with a
proposal was the Maui County Farm Bureau.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

And at

BF 4/3/06

57

1

this point we prepared the lease agreement.

2

with Corp. Counsel.

3

make a few changes, which Kenneth was in our office

4

until 12:30 on Sunday morning to do, and it's near

5

completion.

6

It's

Corp. Counsel requested that we

And so once the lease agreement is finalized

7

and approved by Corp. Counsel, we will be coming

8

before you and requesting the Council's approval of

9

the long-term lease from the -- for the County to

10

lease out the agricultural processing plant to the

11

Maui County Farm Bureau.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Thank you very much.

And also in

13

that regard, because this would now be at some point

14

in time a lease that would be, you know, to the Farm

15

Bureau, since they were the only bidder, if the

16

Council approves it, is there money available within

17

your budget that at some point in time, should the

18

lessee want to make the necessary improvements, is

19

there sufficient money somewhere within the budget

20

that we would be able to give them a grant to then

21

go ahead and make the improvements?

22

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

Yes, we have a couple outstanding grants

23

still issued from the County to the Maui County Farm

24

Bureau, and we're holding those monies to these

25

grants specifically for them to -- once they obtain
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1

a long-term lease, for them to be able to utilize

2

the monies to fully renovate the property to their

3

wishes.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay, thank you very much.

5

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

6

area?

Mr. Mateo.

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

8

morning.

9

or to Mr. Yamamura.

Any further questions in this

Chairman, thank you very much.

Good

I guess the question would be to yourself
When you take a look at the

10

budget request, can you tell me what that number

11

actually represents or how it differs from, say,

12

your small business promotions and functions that

13

the Farm Bureau themselves do in promoting their

14

industry?

15

different entities under one umbrella all wanting to

16

participate in part in a promotional package.

17

Because it seems like there's three

MS. ARAKI REGAN:

Well, the ag promotion dollars are

18

specifically used for different activities in

19

education, training, marketing, research, and

20

development.

21

also go to Maui Flower Growers Association, which

22

isn't part of the monies that are allocated

23

specifically for the Maui County Farm Bureau.

24
25

A portion of the ag promotion dollars

And there are other grantees that we envision
providing grants money to, such as the Maui Coffee
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1

Growers Association, which isn't part of the Farm

2

Bureau.

3

isn't necessarily taking a lead, such as the

4

Upcountry Fair.

There's other events that the Farm Bureau

5

There's also a program that which -- which we

6

want to utilize ag promotion dollars to support, and

7

that is this Ag Week, which was an idea brought

8

forth by the Farm Bureau, but because the Farm

9

Bureau is made up of members -- or many of the ag

10

industry members aren't necessarily members of the

11

Farm Bureau, that we're working in conjunction with

12

the Farm Bureau in putting this Ag Week on, but it

13

really will be a County-led effort.
So basically the Maui County Farm Bureau,

14
15

while the monies are being requested, which I

16

believe is totalling $200,000, this 135,900 is for

17

non-Farm Bureau events and programs.

18

just to give you a brief breakdown of the ag

19

promotion dollars, which is 135,900, which is

20

know/ it's an odd number/ but it's -- it was an

21

amount that was requested in Fiscal Year 2005's

22

Budget and it's just been sort of level funding.

23

You know, we haven't made any changes to that

24

amount.

25

But in giving you a brief breakdown of the
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Ag Week, we're requesting for monies for

1

135,900:

2

the marketing, promotion, some personnel to

3

coordinate the event, as well as monies to have

4

to secure venues for an ag conference which is held

5

on Oahu which we provide monies to help sponsor; the

6

Upcountry Fair is something we wish to sponsor this

7

next year; Maui Flower Growers Association, they

8

typically request for $25,000 to promote their

9

industrYi Coffee Growers Association, we're

10

requesting for approximately $10,000 or so; and

11

other agricultural-related projects as they arise,

12

approximately $7,900.

13

totaling each of those line items, it totals

14

135,900, and that's to promote ago

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

So totalling

you know, all

Is there a reason for these non --

16

these agencies that are not part of the Maui Farm

17

Bureau, is there a benefit for them to be part of

18

the Farm Bureau?

19

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

20

Members

21

MR. YAMAMURA:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23
24
25

They are

- they are, I believe,

some of them are members of the -It's on
If you can identify yourself for the record,

please, sir.
MR. YAMAMURA:
OED.

I'm Kenneth Yamamura, the Ag Specialist,

It's an organization that not everyone chooses
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1

to be part of.

2

it! but irrespective of whether they join! they are

3

trying to promote ag

4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

So -- and they're not there to force

all forms of agriculture.

My only question for asking that is

5

because we have an entity called the Maui County

6

Farm Bureau! that I would hope would take the lead

7

in moving agriculture forward on Maui County! and I

8

would have -- I would think that part of the purpose

9

and the intent is to encourage all other ag

10

individuals to become part of this organization

11

that -- whose first and foremost intent is to

12

produce and promote agriculture in this County.

13

MR. YAMAMURA:

A small portion of their budget is for that

14

purpose! which is membership! and they're always

15

reaching out to groups.

16

they're not there to force any group.

17
18

19

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

It's an ongoing thing! but

No! we're not talking about forcing!

Mr. Yamamura.
MR. YAMAMURA:

They're open to anyone being a part

20

because their main focus is legislative, you know,

21

anything that involves monies either through the

22

County or through the State Legislature, the Farm

23

Bureau takes the lead in whatever is presented.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

25

you! Chairman.

Okay! thank you very much.
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2

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Members?

Further questions in this area,

Hearing none.

Moving on to -- we have several areas where

3
4

there is no proposal.

The Coastal Land Trust

5

one-time grant for manager, the Cultural Restoration

6

Program, Culture, Arts, Sports and Events Promotion,

7

Dengue Fever, Anthrax and Other Health-Related

8

Issues, East Maui Cultural Economic Development

9

Program is level from last year, as well as the

10

Environmental Protection request of 600,000.

11

Filipino Centennial Celebration to Maui Filipino

12

Community Council was a one-time for their

13

centennial celebration, and the film industry

14

promotion is level at $85,000.

17

We'll stop there.

Are there any questions in this area?

15
16

The

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And I'm not sure if it was in that

18

area or the previous one, but the Cane Top

19

utilization study that we had had previously,

20

Ms. Araki-Regan, was that just simply because it did

21

not pan out or it was a one-time grant or,

22

Mr. Yamamura, if you can.

23

MR. YAMAMURA:

Let me speak on that.

They have been

24

making progress on that particular project.

25

now they were assessing certain equipment that was
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1

available in Hawaii, and the equipment was to

2

physically rake the material where it could be

3

picked up and baled.

4

baling.

5

the University of Hawaii out in Hilo.

6

is HC&S is shut down from harvesting sugar right

7

now.

8

starting up and then the leaves will become

9

available and then they can do more testing.

Recently they did do some

The equipment was actually obtained from
The problem

I mean, they should be harvesting sugar and

So far the test bales were dry material.

10

We

11

need to test wetter material.

12

the equipment and then they -- because they still

13

have the funding in place, they will then determine

14

what else needs to be bought.

15

like the tractor to do the baling.

16

determination what they need, but the project is

17

going, going forward.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And the evaluating

And then it could be
They're making a

Because this was just for the

19

utilization study, is there a need still ongoing in

20

some other component, then, of the budget that we

21

should have monies available to help further that

22

effort for utilization of the cane tops or is it

23

something that they're seeking other monies for from

24

other entities right now?

25

MR. YAMAMURA:

I think they have sufficient funds to
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1

undertake what they were planning to do.

2

that they did, though, which was dry material, was

3

recently put out to animals to see if it was

4

compatible, and they were -- the cattle ate the

5

material, so they feel they're on the right track.

6

They just want to make sure they have all the

7

equipment they need in place and then they'll

8

determine like when there's a drought, how do you

9

work this program, who gets the -- you know, the

10

11

The bales

cane material and at what price.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay, because I know that for me

12

that's a big issue, because we're trying to

13

stabilize the cattle industry, the feed, and of

14

course the hay that's being imported is a big

15

expense for the farming community.

16

to make sure that we explore all possibilities and

17

we support it.

18

have sufficient money,

19

that.

20

MS. ARAKI REGAN:

So I just want

So as long as you state that they
I won't be concerned about

I just wanted to add something, Chair.

21

If hypothetically that they don't have enough funds,

22

let's say perhaps six months down the road we

23

realize that they're short of funds and that they're

24

in need of funds

25

grantees, thanks to my hard working staff.

we work closely with the
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1

every effort to look for grant opportunities for

2

these grantees.

3

funds line-itemed at that specific -- for that

4

specific year for that purpose, if there -- if any

5

grantee is in need of funds, we work closely with

6

them in exploring other grant opportunities and help

7

them even apply for grants.
So I think in terms of this specific line

8

9

And so even if we may not have

item, we're pretty confident that if funds are

10

needed in the future, we don't think it will -- we

11

will assist them in applying for funds through other

12

agencies.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

14

MR. YAMAMURA:

Thank you.

Yeah, just to clarify something.

They did

15

approach the -- there is a Maui Ag Development

16

program out of USDA, and it's administered by NRCS,

17

and last year they did apply for funding, so to --

18

additional funding.

19
20

21

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, let's move on.

questions

this area?

Members, any additional

Seeing none.

Under Film Industry Promotion, the 85, as I

22

stated, was level.

23

the USC Film School, Historical/Cultural

24

Preservation Projects is not being funded.

25

Health and Wellness Promotions,

Ms. Araki-Regan,

if you can perhaps provide
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1

some clarity.

2

funding in the past that don't receive funding now

3

that have been consolidated into some other funding

4

mechanism within your office?

5

provide us with some detail to that.

6

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

Has there been programs that receive

And if so, if you can

Thank you for that question.

with

7

regards to the

I guess, you know, this kind of

8

relates to the historical/cultural preservation

9

projects, and even the Culture, Arts, and Events

10

Promotion line item, you know, we're very thankful

11

that the Office of Economic Development receives on

12

an annual basis funds from the Hawaii Tourism

13

Authority to fund various projects in the specific

14

areas of culture, health, agriculture, historical,

15

educational, various programs that you hear of in

16

the community which are sponsored by the County of

17

Maui.

18

supporting these various programs.

19

It's thanks to Hawaii Tourism's efforts in

So while there are many line items that are

20

so-called zeroed out, it's not neces

21

we don't support those line items.

22

have funds through Hawaii Tourism Authority that

23

we're so pleased to utilize and support.

24

example, historical and cultural preservation

25

projects, while we did have a line item this year
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1

thanks to the Maui County Council, thank you for

2

your support for this, there are product development

3

program funds out of HTA dollars that we utilize to

4

support some historical/cultural projects.

5

not asking for a historical/cultural preservation

6

projects line item, this year anyway.

7
8

9

CHAIR KANE:

So we're

Okay, thank you.
Members?

Oh, Mr. Pontanilla.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

In regards

10

to what you just explained to us, for instance, if

11

three islands have an event, how do we I guess fund

12

each island for an event that Hawaii Tourism

13

Authority, you know, provide funds for?

14

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

We have a grants review committee, and

15

each year in the fall sometime, like September or

16

so, the County of Maui issues a request for

17

proposals, which we circulate to all different

18

all three islands to encourage their non-profit

19

organizations to apply for the funds.

20

community workshop hearings that are held on each of

21

the three islands, and we have a close working

22

relationship with many other non-profits who put -

23

who we know who put on events.

24

opportunity to meet other grantees who may not

25

necessarily be family with the HTA Product

We also use this
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1

Enrichment program.

And we highlight, you know,

2

this program and let them know what the monies are

3

used for.
When the proposals are received thereafter,

4

5

in October or November or so, we have a grants

6

review committee made up of people from all three

7

islands, Molokai, Lanai, and Maui, including East

8

Maui, and we hold a day-long meeting with these

9

grants review committee members and they review each

10

of the grant applications and make appropriate grant

11

awards and it works out.

12

effective.

13

we have many events that our office sponsors, and

14

they are in all different areas, South Maui, East

15

Maui, Molokai, Lanai, Central Maui.

16

provide you a laundry list of different activities

17

we sponsor.

18

20

And just on the top of my head, I mean,

Thank you
CHAIR KANE:

I mean, I can

I'd be pleased to do that.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

19

I mean, it's pretty

1

Thank you.

Thank you.

Chair.
Okay, moving on, Members

I

lao

21

Theatre Restoration,

22

Development Section in the MRP, the plan, Islands of

23

the World Conference IX, 35,000, which is a new

24

project, apparently.

25

Implementation and Market

Ms. Araki-Regan, comments here.
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MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

(Inaudible due to mic being off) whole

2

theme of the conference -- I'm sorry -- is

3

sustainable islands, sustainable strategies with

4

emphasis on the interconnected topics of Pookela,

5

which is the economy, Malama 'aina, ecology, and

6

Poohanohano, social equity and heritage.

7

$35,000 is just a portion of the actual MCC's

8

request, which I believe was 75,000.

9

at the budget, we thought that $35,000 was a

10

And this

And in looking

reasonable request of the Council.
Basically it's to have -- it's to be able to

11

12

have the Maui Community College hire some

13

administrative personnel to help oversee the

14

conference to make sure everything goes smoothly and

15

to establish a basis for future regularly scheduled

16

conferences focusing on sustainability.

17

requesting 35,000 of the $75,000 requested.

18

talking with MCC to see if the $35,000 of the

19

$75,000 was sufficient, in talking with MCC,

20

said that it was sufficient because they were able

21

to leverage some other monies through other funding

22

sources to make up for the difference.

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

25

So we're
In

they

Mr. Molina.
Thank you, Chairman.

Good morning, Madam Director.

Being that
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1

this conference is being put on MCC, did they

2

indicate to you any support from the State to help

3

pay for the cost of this conference?

4

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

That's a good question.

I know MCC is

5

taking the most active role

6

the one putting it on.

7

allocated in their budget, you know, monies within

8

their own budget to support this.

9

need of supplementing that budget through, you know,

t

because they are like

So they already have

They're just in

10

seeking funding from other sources to put this on.

11

I don't know exactly how much the State is providing

12

in addition to what MCC's budget is supporting for

13

this, but I can find out.

14

to you.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

I'd be happy to get back

Okay, great, thank you.

Thank you.

Further questions, Members?

Moving on, the Lokahi Pacific for Blue Hawaii

18

Building Project, Ms. Ridao and Ms. Betts-Basinger

19

came in and testified about that, Members.

20

additional questions about that, Members, on this

21

particular project?

22

Okay, moving forward.

Any

The Made in Maui

23

Products is blank.

We have the Maui Arts and

24

cultural center request of 450,OOOt and,

25

Ms. Araki-Regan t to confirm, that's broken down into
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1

two, 250 for your annual operation and the 200K is

2

the final component of their phase for capital

3

improvement; is that correct?

4

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

5

CHAIR KANE:

Yes, Chair.

Okay, we're moving forward.

Maui County Farm

6

Bureau of 200,000, which is $50,000 increase.

7

Questions, Members?

Okay, we're moving on.

8

The ME DB request is a $325,000 amount, which

9

is less than the previous, and I believe they had a

10

CIP project from last year that is not there this

11

year.

12

The MECO Photovoltaic Systems Program.

13

has a question, but I'll yield if anybody else has a

14

question there?

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Chair

Ms. Tavares, I -That's the one I've been waiting

for.

17

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

You want to say a little bit about

19

this Maui -- MECO Photovoltaics System Program and

20

whatever happened to the Maui Solar Roofs

21

Initiative, unless that's on another page?

22

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

Well, we're very pleased that the Maui

23

Solar Water Heater Initiative project is finally

24

self sufficient.

25

fund.

As you know, it's a revolving loan
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

MS. ARAKI REGAN:

Right.

And in the past couple years we've

3

provided monies totaling I think $100 r OOO per year r

4

but finally as we've had loan payments being made r

5

et cetera r the loan is -- the loan program is

6

finallYr you know r self sustaining.

7

pleased about that.

8
9

So we're very

The County of Maui and Maui Electric CompanYr
in terms of its MECO Photovoltaic Systems Program r

10

have been working together to increase the use of

11

renewable energy in Maui County by increasing the

12

number of solar water heating systems r as I

13

mentioned.

14

and has increased the number of solar water heater

15

providers and technicians in the County as the

16

demand for solar water heaters increased with the

17

rebates provided through money from the County.

18

This has been a very successful effort

Extending the effort to increase economic

19

opportunities through renewables, MECO is now

20

proposing to now focus on photovoltaic systems, or

21

solar electric systems.

22

development and gross in the solar electric industry

23

by providing photovoltaic systems to seniors and low

24

income residential consumers.

25

assist those who are having the hardest time keeping

The idea is to spur

This program will
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1

up with increased electric bills, as well as keep

2

the fledgling industry here on Maui.

3

This proposed project is a partnership

4

between the County of Maui, Maui Electric Company,

5

Maui Economic Opportunity, and Maui Community

6

College, dubbed Energy Equals CM3, Energy Equals

7

County times MECO times MEO times MCC.

8
9

MECO anticipates that it can install 10 to 15
solar electric systems in one year while providing

10

training through apprenticeship of students in MCC's

11

sustainable technologies program.

12

are the future employees of this industry, needed in

13

order for it to be self sustaining.

14

These students

Additionally, MEO will identify and select

15

candidates, as well as help provide education on

16

solar electric systems and energy efficiency to

17

families struggling to pay their electric bills.

18

These systems cost anywhere between 10 to $30,000 a

19

piece, depending on size! but can reduce and nearly

20

eliminate the electric costs for these customers for

21

at least 20 years.

22

requesting for $150,000 to implement this program,

23

and this is to essentially replace the solar heating

24

initiative's project, which, as I said, is self

25

sustaining, which is good.

So basically! you know, we're
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

Mr. Chair.

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

So we'll basically -- I'm sorry,

No, proceed.
So basically they will actually

set up a different account, then, for this money?

6

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

Yes.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chair, I'll submit other

8

questions in writing for -- regarding this subject.

9

Thank you.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

And if helps, Ms. Tavares, we'll go

11

ahead and request for the Committee over to MECO

12

since it seems like they're the lead -- lead

13

grantee, I should say, or the grantee in this case.

14

I notice because it's a new program we have grant

15

and disbursements.

16

directly to them if we give it favorable

17

consideration?

18

MECO on the program as well so we can understand how

19

they're going to go about formulating and

20

implementing the program.

21

Why wouldn't we just grant it

But let's get some feedback from

So from us, if you want to forward your

22

questions specific to this, and we'll go ahead and

23

integrate that into some of the questions that we

24

may have to send out to get responses from MECO.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, thank you, Chair.
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1

last week we received a communication from Joanne

2

Ide from MECO giving some information about the

3

program, but there might be some other information

4

that I need, especially the relationship between

5

this and the Solar Roofs Initiative Program, but Ms.

6

Araki-Regan has answered that particular question.

7

Thank you.

8

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, thank you.
Members, let's move on.

9

10

here.

11

amount for Maui Long-term Care Partnership Care

12

Giver Project.

13

at 125 -- 125,000.

14

Agency going from 80,000 to 295,000, for a $215,000

15

increase.

16

I know Mr. Steel came forward and gave us some

17

testimony late last week, and if there's any

18

additional questions, you can ask now or we can pose

19

additional questions in writing and get additional

20

information.

21

Okay, there we go.

Finding the place

Next would have a level

Maui Nui Botanical Gardens is level
We have the Maui Redevelopment

Any additional questions here, Members?

Okay, we're moving forward, Members.

Under

22

the Maui Soil/Water Conservation District we have a

23

level funding request of 38,870.

24

Visitors Bureau, with an increase of $350,000.

25

questions here?

We have Maui

I see Ms. Terryl Vencl, the
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1

Executive Director here in the audience.

2

any questions, then we have that opportunity to ask

3

her to come forward.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Members?

If there's

Ms. Tavares.

Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I would

5

appreciate if she would come down and talk about the

6

additional $300,000 that's requested in the budget.

7

CHAIR KANE:

8

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

9

CHAIR KANE:

10
11

12

Members, any objections?
No objections.

Okay, we'll have Ms. Vencl come forward.
Good morning, Ms. Vencl.

If you can identify

yourself for the record, please.
MS. VENCL:

Aloha, Mr. Chairman and Committee Members.

My

13

name is Terryl Vencl.

14

the Maui Visitors Bureau.

15

opportunity to speak to you today.

16

request and it has been put into the Mayor's budget

17

for an increase of 10 percent, which equals

18

$350,000.

19

where we're at.

20

very fortunate that you have invested in the Bureau

21

and in the marketing dollars for the Visitors Bureau

22

for about four years at a $3.5 million budget.

23

I'm the Executive Director of
I thank you for the
We have given a

This increase is basically to keep us
It's maintaining.

We have been

We have each of those years, year over year,

24

received a 7 to 10 percent increase in the cost of

25

doing business, and in order for us to maintain and
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1

keep doing the same programs that we've been doing

2

that have been very successful for Maui, we felt

3

that because the TAT is in a rise right now, that it

4

might be the time to ask for consideration of an

5

increase.
The other -- the other thing that I would

6

7

like to do with this increase is to work on our

8

website.

9

different departments that we have within the

We are very competitive in all of the

10

Visitors Bureau, but the place that we lack and we

11

have put on the back burner for many, many years is

12

the website.

13

websites, we really are way behind the eight ball

14

with regard to website.

And as I view other convention bureau

We have a wonderful website and it does

15

16

wonderful stuff for us, and we just get enormous

17

hits on it, but it

18

like from like the '80s and there's only so much we

19

can do.

20

the cabin, as we call it, by just changing out some

21

pictures and things, but there's a lot of new

22

technology that would help us tremendously if we

23

could get some extra dollars to help us with the

24

website.

25

where we are not right up to the competitive edge

- the structure that we have is

And we were fortunate last year to change

And that, in my opinion, is the only place
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1

with everyone else, but we have to maintain the

2

programs that we're doing.
Our ads in magazines are increasing year over

3

4

year, up to 10 percent.

5

throughout partnerships with HPCB and island

6

chapters, but we have just about gotten all the

7

juice out of that turnip that we can get, so we

8

decided that this was the time to ask for an

9

increase.

10

CHAIR KANE:

We have leveraged dollars

I thank you for your consideration.

Thank you.

Members?

And before I recognize

11

you, Ms. Tavares, we have received the packet from

12

MVB for additional information, and you can

13

reference that if you have any additional questions

14

in that area.

15

questions or comments?

16

But, Ms. Tavares, any further

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, Ms. Vencl.

Thank you for

17

being here.

18

in TAT has been to the County of Maui in the last

19

four years?

20

MS. VENCL:

Can you share with us what the increase

Do you have that information available?

Four years, I don't know if I have that one

21

with me, but I do have the last two years.

22

year has gone up about a million and a half dollars

23

in TAT alone, not to mention the real property tax

24

stuff.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Right.
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1

MS. VENCL:

2

just

3

note that said, Check out the TAT.

4

TAT, February this year over February last year, was

5

up from 1.8 to $2.3 million, your take on the TAT.

6

So it has been climbing every year.

7

A million and a half dollars, and I actually
this was put on my desk this morning with a

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Wow.

February's

Ms. Vencl, I know you passed out

8

that packet this morning to the members, I haven't

9

had a chance to really look through it in that

10

packet.

11

are brought in by the tourist industry, you know,

12

which would account for real property tax revenues

13

as well as TAT, and that sort of thing?

14

that packet?

15

MS. VENCL:

Do you explain somewhere the revenues that

Is that in

No, actually, it is not in that packet.

The

16

one I passed out today is the market planning to let

17

you know exactly where we'll be using those dollars

18

and spending those dollars.

19

that I know that the real property tax for the hotel

20

and time-share category is about 41 percent of the

21

entire real property tax coffers for the County of

22

Maui.

23

I can share with you

It's a substantial amount of money.
Additionally, I think that what we've been

24

able to do in the last two to three years is we have

25

been able to lessen those valleys and keep people
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1

working in our community on a pretty consistent

2

basis and a regular basis, and I'd like to also say

3

that, you know, sometimes people think that because

4

you give a substantial amount of money to the

5

Visitors Bureau, that somehow we don't care about

6

our infrastructure and our community and that sort

7

of thing.

8

that, with the amount of money that's brought in by

9

the real property tax category for just the hotels

And I'd just like to say that contrary to

10

and time-share category, additionally the TAT monies

11

that come into this community, if you were to take a

12

look at those and think about any portion of those

13

either going away or decreasing, what would you have

14

to do in order to make up that difference?

15

have to raise property tax on residents probably.

16

So I think keeping the industry healthy is

You'd

17

the right thing to do, and I think that the

18

investment that you folks have put forward in the

19

last number of years has proven to be effect

20

we as a community decided sometime ago that we would

21

go down a particular path of high end, less heads on

22

beds and try to go that route, and it's been very

23

successful.

But I can't keep doing things at the

24

same level.

I can't be in all the shows, in all of

25

the travel trade reservation training seminars.
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1

can't be everywhere we've been in the past without

2

some increase, and that's why I'm asking.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

Thank you.

Any further questions?

Ms. Johnson.

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

7

MS. VENCL:

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

Thank you.

Yes, Terryl.

Thanks.

Hi .
We, I believe it was either last

week or the week before, had a report from our

10

Council Chair, Mr. Hokama, that there is a bill

11

going through the State Legislature to exempt the

12

time-shares from paying TOT, and because we're not

13

sure where that is going to end up, what portion of

14

the revenues that Maui County has been receiving

15

would be impacted or what would be the extent of

16

that impact because of the statements that you just

17

made?

18

MS. VENCL:

I wish I could give you that answer.

I've

19

been trying to get that answer for years.

Quite

20

frankly, the State will tell you that they do not

21

break out the TAT and the TOT, and it's reported

22

in fact right here in my report it's reported as one

23

number.

24

I'd love to know what that is as well.

25

you what it -- I think I can tell you what it's

So I wish I could give you that, because
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1

based on.

2

maintenance dues.

3

a smaller number than the regular TAT, but what the

4

total would be if it went away, I'm not sure.

5

wish I knew.

6

The TOT is based on 7 1/4 percent of

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So it is a very -- it's very much

And I appreciate that.

I

The other

7

question that I have is because the mix of

8

time-shares, hotels is dramatically changing.

9

you be able to give us information

Would

because I know

10

some of your budget is utilized to promote or to

11

co-sponsor events that come here to Maui County.

12

Because the time-share industry has also had an

13

impact, and we cannot accommodate, at least in West

14

Maui, large conventions, are you able to address how

15

the membership makeup of your -- you know, the

16

Visitors Bureau and how that is actually equating to

17

the monies that you have in your budget to promote

18

events that can no longer be accommodated by -- I

19

guess by just sheerly the number of rooms that are

20

available?

21

MS. VENCL:

Yeah, lid like to comment.

Thank you for the

22

question, Ms. Johnson.

You may remember that last

23

year when I came before you I told you that we were

24

going to bring the CMI business, the conventions

25

meetings business in house, which we've never done,
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1

and what I've been able to find by doing that is

2

I've been able to get my arms around it a little bit

3

better.

4

I'd call them concerns.

5

with regard to having enough rooms for conventions

6

and meetings is really about the heaviness of the

7

FIT traveler, as opposed to a time-share traveler.

8

The hotels are booking 80 plus percent on a regular

9

basis with FIT

10

CHAIR KANE:

11

MS. VENCL:

I will tell you that the -- I don't know if
The issues that come up

What does that stand for?
and of course those are -- yes, I'm sorry,

12

free and independent travelers.

13

leisure -- excuse me, Chair.

14

family visitor or couple visitor, and when they're

15

able to sell those rates -- sell those rooms to

16

those folks at a much higher rate than the

17

convention business, that's where we find the rub,

18

and so I haven't -- I haven't truly noticed it being

19

a time-share issue, as much as the free and

20

independent traveler issue.

21

That's your

That's your regular

Now, one of the things that we know Maui

22

pulls in the way of conventions, our largest

23

convention people are called incentives.

24

people who are told by a company somewhere across

25

the world that if they sell or they do X amount,
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1

meet certain goals, they get to come to Maui.

2

That's our biggest market for the meetings market,

3

and those people are willing to pay the dollar.

So

4

we've been able to keep the incentive business.

But

5

it is a little different situation in where we used

6

to be able to think in terms of spreading rooms

7

across, for example, the Kaanapali strip across all

8

those hotels, but truthfully it has not been

9

it has not been a problem.

yet

We have not lost any

10

business that I'm aware of because of that

11

situation.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And I just -- if you can provide

13

us at some point the information, though, with

14

regard -- and if you can't because it's not broken

15

out, I understand, but with the hotel closures and

16

also the conversions from the hotel to time-share,

17

what would the impacts be at some point in time,

18

even your best estimates as to what those impacts

19

would be on the transient accommodations?

20

know that with the closure of some of our hotels we

21

just have some less rooms.

22

MS. VENCL:

Yeah, you're right, we do.

Because I

You know, I think

23

that there's a -- County has a time-share study of

24

some sort.

25

was interviewed for that.

Lynn probably knows more about it.

I think they're coming
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1

forward soon with some information about that.

2

I think there's actually somebody contracted to find

3

that information out and they'd probably be better

4

at it than I would, actually.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

MS. VENCL:

7

CHAIR KANE:

8

none.

9
10
11

MS. VENCL:
CHAIR KANE:

Okay, thank you very much.

Thank you.
Any further questions for Ms. Vencl?

Thank you.
Appreciate you coming forward.
Members, we're going to move on.

We have the

MCC Four-Year Degree Program of $2 million.

13

Members, any additional questions here?

14

moving forward, Microenterprise is a $40,000

15

increase to $190,000.

17

18

Hearing

Thank you very much.

12

16

But

Okay,

Ms. Araki-Regan, any comments here on the
40,000 increase?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

I wanted to explain, and we have people

19

from MEO here as well, but the increase in funding

20

of $40,000 and $25,000 from other funding sources,

21

the program will continue to provide loans for the

22

establishment or expansion of small businesses, but

23

they're also -- with this money they're seeking a

24

full-time staff person on Molokai to staff the

25

growing demand for their services on that island.
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1

And with the additional monies, MEO Business

2

Development Corp. will also be adding the Maui Micro

3

Alumni Network for ongoing support of these start-up

4

expanding businesses.

5

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, any further questions here, Members?

6

Hearing none.

Let's move forward.

7

Development and Cultural Program is $70,000.

8

minusing out

9

Hearing none, Members, on the back page, Molokai

$90,900.

Molokai Economic
It's

Any questions in this area?

10

Enterprise Community, Molokai Livestock Cooperative,

11

Molokai Slaughterhouse, piko A'o Program - the

12

Hawaiian Learning Center at Waihee are zeroed out.

13

We also have the Small Business Promotion of

14

100,000, which is a level request.

15

Development Revitalization is zeroed out.

16

Soil/Water Conservation District for Molokai and

17

Lanai continue at 10,000, level funding, and the

18

Solar Water Heater Initiatives, we heard some

19

comment this morning through Ms. Tavares's

20

questioning{ has been zeroed out this particular

21

year.

22

area, Members?

23

We'll stop there.

Small Town

Any questions in this

Seeing none.

Let's proceed.

Looking at Sports Tourism Development.

24

is a new item under this -- this section.

25

Ms. Araki-Regan, comments on Sports Tourism
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Development?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

Yes r Chair r just a short background r

3

Chair.

HTA completed a ten-year strategic plan for

4

Hawaii.

5

area of marketing was to develop marketing programs

6

that contribute to sustainable economic growth.

7

strategic direction being used to accomplish the

8

marketing strategic initiative is to provide for

9

stability in the visitor industry by creating

One of the goals stated in this plan in the

A

10

programs such as sporting events that generate

11

additional support in traditional shoulder seasons r

12

spring and fall.

13

One good example of something that we could

14

have used monies -- you know r had we put monies in

15

the Fiscal Year 2006 Budgetr for example r was like

16

the professional bull riders event that you may have

17

seen in the paper last week.

18

in talking with Mike Story from Hawaii Tourism

19

Authority, we were both thinking about possibly

20

joining forces in issuing an RFP attracting sports

21

events organizers throughout the world to consider

22

Maui as a realistic sporting destination.

23

we could use this monies to attract another event r

24

you know r to replace the Hula Bowl, which is no

25

longer here on Maui r to -- you know, to further

You know r we could
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1

stimulate our economy and to attract visitors

2

throughout the world to Maui as a sporting

3

destination.

4

Although our facilities may not be, you know,

5

as comparable as large cities, you know, an event

6

such as, for example, the Myron Duarte Maui

7

Challenge that we're in the process of working with

8

Piiholo Ranch in organizing is an event that I think

9

is -- it's something that we can realistically put

10

on here on Maui, and we're hoping to utilize such

11

monies to attract possibly another event that our

12

visitors, as well as residents can enjoy.

13
14

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, just to be clear, this $2,000 has

nothing to do with the Myron Duarte bull riding?

15

MS. ARAKI -REGAN:

16

CHAIR KANE:

No.

Okay, so there's no connection between the

17

two?

18

MS. ARAKI REGAN:

Although, you know, if the Council so

19

chooses, you know, and it's your call, you know, we

20

could use -- utilize maybe a portion of the monies

21

to help support the event, because I know in talking

22

with Professional Bull Riders, Inc. and Piiholo

23

Ranch, they're actively seeking sponsorships from

24

the community, which is my first priority, is

25

getting sponsorships from the community first, but
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1

if monies, you know, don't all come in to be able to

2

satisfy their needs, possibly -- depending on your

3

thoughts, we'd like to possibly allocate monies and

4

allow our office to have the flexibility to allocate

5

monies, if appropriate.

6
7

8
9

CHAIR KANE:

So just to be clear, again, your office

actively solicits sponsorships for these programs?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

Actually, we're still in the talking

stages, but I'm working closely with Peter Baldwin

10

of Piiholo Ranch in seeing what needs to be done,

11

what organizations they can approach and PBR can

12

approach in putting this event together for it to be

13

a success here.

14

going to be starting to talk with community members

15

and businesses throughout Maui County to generate

16

support for the event.

17

whether, you know, their support will be sufficient,

18

but possibly, if monies, you know, are needed by

19

these organizers to put on this event, perhaps maybe

20

a portion could be allocated.

21
22

23
24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

They're in the process -- they're

I can't tell you as to

I'm not sure.

Any further questions in here?

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, thank you.

Ms. Araki-Regan, where does the HTA fit into
this particular event?
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MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

Hawaii Tourism Authority Product

2

Enrichment Program specifically excludes sporting

3

tourism events.

4

Product Enrichment Program goes to support, and

5

those are historical, cultural, educational,

6

agricultural, but sporting events isn't necessarily

7

in the HTA Product Enrichment Program.

8

They have specific niches that the

As for Hawaii Tourism, I mean, there are

9

other departments, other divisions within HTA, and

10

Michael Story handles sporting tourism, attracting

11

sporting events in Hawaii.

12

money, which we're hoping to have some access to,

13

but we're hoping and we're in need of this monies to

14

be able to leverage HTA dollars.

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

They have a pot of

So their pot of money is different

than the HTA Product Enrichment --

17

MS. ARAKI REGAN:

Yes.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

pot?

Yes.
Is there any kind of promotion of

21

that for education, you know, the HTA Product

22

Enrichment Program comes to Maui, they put on

23

workshops, trainings, whatever, does this group or

24

whoever is controlling the money for the sporting

25

events, do they do a similar thing on each of the
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islands.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

I think they work -- in talking with

3

Michael StorYr who just recently joined the Hawaii

4

Tourism AuthoritYr it's a new position r from my --

5

according to my research r and he's approaching each

6

of the County's Offices of Economic Development in

7

working with uS r rather than duplicating the

8

County's efforts.

9

to work with Mr. Story on a -- you know r in a -- I

10

So I intend to make every effort

intend to have a close working relationship.
And part of my idea in requesting the Mayor

11

12

and the Council this $50 r OOO is exactly to use such

13

monies to be able to leverage HTA dollars.

14

important for the Counties to be able to show that

15

the County supports sports tourism events r and in

16

order for me to apply for money from HTAr

17

Councilmember Tavares r we need to show our support

18

for it as well.

19
20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

It's

I'm not getting upset with you/

Lynn.

21

MS. ARAKI -REGAN:

No r no.

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I'm getting upset with HTA right

23

now.

Where do they think this money comes from?

24

generate the money.

25

a whole chunk of this money that's paid to the TAT

That's our support.
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1

that supports the convention center.

2

trickle down effect that we were promised years ago

3

has not materialized for Maui County, or any of the

4

other neighbor islands.

5

need for support this so that we can leverage monies

6

at the State level, that's monies that we put into

7

this pot.

8

upsetting to me.

9

And so-called

And so for them to say we

That's the kinds of stuff that's

I mean, I thank you for pursuing it to try to

10

get more for us, but at the same time, this is

11

getting really irritating that we're put in a

12

position where we're confined or restricted in

13

definition by HTA Product Enrichment, and then where

14

the definition is that we'd like to go for is an

15

area that doesn't follow the same process that the

16

Product Enrichment HTA monies follows.

17

hope that we're going to communicate something to

18

whoever it is

19

of the HTA

20

we need to share in all of this, and in their

21

bureaucracy it's preventing us from getting

22

activities on our island that people on our island

23

have interest in.

24
25

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

And I sure

is it Rex Johnson that handles all
if we get our messages to them about

Chair.

It's my understanding that this

HTA Sports Division within HTA does on an annual
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1

basis -- or intends to do on an annual basis like an

2

RFP letting the sporting organizations know --

3

internationally know about, you know, what Hawaii

4

facilities are, what we have to offer, but it's not

5

necessarily specifically -- specifically to attract

6

events to Maui County.

7

know, it's not

8

And so, you

it's not County specific.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay, thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

9

10

It's to Hawaii.

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Any further questions?

11

question?

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

Ms. Johnson,

I just wanted to find out,

13

Ms. Araki-Regan, would any of the monies in this be

14

used to support extreme fighting or anything of that

15

sort?

16
17

18

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

Extreme fighting?

with extreme fighting.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I'm not too familiar

Is that like boxing or --

No, it's basically I consider it a

19

blood sport, but would you object if we put in a

20

proviso stating that none of these monies could be

21

used for that purpose?

22

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

I'm going to defer to the Council.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

24

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

So it's your call.
Thank you.
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1

CHAIR KANE:

Any further questions in this area, Members?

2

Moving on.

3

excuse me, three items that are listed with dollar

4

amounts.

5

program, Tropical Ag and Human Resources.

6

a slight decrease of $1,500 for a $98,500 request

7

proposal.

8

Members?

9

We have two items that are listed -- or,

We have the UH College -- the CTAHR
They have

We have -- oh, any questions there,

Moving on, we have the USGS for Na Wai 'Eha

10

Stream Studies of 75,000, which is level.

11

will request from Economic Development Office if you

12

folks can provide us, A -- if we haven't already

13

received one, A, a status of the current fiscal year

14

$75,000, where they're at in that project, and, B,

15

what this 75,000 will do to continue the process of

16

the stream study, and, C, if we can find out the

17

partners, I know that there were two other partners,

18

OHA and I believe one other, if I'm not mistaken,

19

but if you can find out the status on that as well.

20

It was my understanding that this year there

21

was going to be a little bit more that was going to

22

be requested, so I just wanted to find out where

23

we're at with that.

24

briefly, we'll take that, but if not, we'll send

25

those questions in writing to your office,

If there's any comment now
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Ms. Araki-Regan.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

I'm not too familiar with this t because

3

this was inserted in our budget and -- but it's my

4

understanding through research that the purpose of

5

this UH Geological Survey for Na Wai 'Eha Stream

6

Studies -- and the partners are basically the

7

CountYt Earthjustice t and Office of Hawaiian

8

Affairs t but basically the purpose of the $75 OOO

9

request is to maintain -- is to monitor hydraulic

t

10

and aquatic habitat status of the stream and taking

11

a look at the flow status.

12

understanding that it's going to be for a three-year

13

period.

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

This is for -- it's my

Yes.
So it's not something t you know t on an

16

annual basis.

17

possibly -- I think it's a three-year.

18

CHAIR KANE:

It's a three-year period onlYt

Yeah t and we're aware of itt so my

19

question -- and we'll send it in writing, just to

20

have a status of where they're at and --

21

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

We're in the process of doing the grant

22

paperwork on this for Fiscal Year 2006 monies.

23

hope to circulate it for signature hopefully by the

24

end of next week.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, thank you very much.
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Members, the final item we have is the

1
2

Watershed Protection dollars, which is a level

3

request of 200,000.

Any questions on this?

Members, the total amount of $9,713,270 is a

4
5

$2.7386 million increase over the current fiscal

6

year.

7

please feel free to send your questions in.

8

get responses.

9

If there's any additional questions, Members,

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

We'll

Ms. Tavares.
Yes, just went over a comment

10

about these grants.

11

line from these reports?

12

then there's no action, no activity for the last

13

whatever the reporting periods are from 2005.

14

we have or consider in the future that when there is

15

no activity, no request, no outstanding encumbrances

16

or whatever it is that you just delete the line as

17

it's -- you know, we've got several of those

18

throughout reporting grants.

19

that's a product or a result of the way the

20

bookkeeping goes or the IFAS system or whatever

21

generates these reports.

22

MS. ARAKI-REGAN:

What does it take to remove a
It makes it very long and

Can

So I don't know if

Chair, it's my understanding that

23

basically what's before you is merely a comparison

24

of the grants for Fiscal Year 2003,

25

just to have you able to compare.

'4

I

'5, and '6,

In looking at the
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1

budget paperwork that I received from the Budget

2

Office

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

No, it's not that one that I'm

4

referring to.

5

handed out by the Budget Office.

6

that has lines that have no numbers in them at all,

7

because it's pau or no longer exists or it was a

8

one-time thing, you know, three or four years ago.

9

I'm just wondering if that could be a consideration

10

I'm referring to the one that was
That's the one

for the future.

11

CHAIR KANE:

We'll engage discussions

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

-- Ms. Tavares, with our Staff and

14

Administration, including the Budget Director, to

15

see how we can streamline that.

16

budget -- actual budget ordinance, it doesn't -- it

17

does not include the ones that are discontinued or

18

variances.

19

the proposal.

It just shows what we're doing as far as

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22
23

As far as in your

Right.

So we'll continue to dialogue with the

Director.
Members, any final questions in this area for

24

Ms. Lynn Araki-Regan, our Economic Development

25

Coordinator?

Seeing none.
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Thank you very much.

1

2

We appreciate your

folks' presence this morning.
Members, the Chair is aware of the time.

3
4

We're going to do our best to complete the grants

5

request this morning.

6

and then we'll come back and start jumping into CIP.

7

So that's the intent, Members.
Again, if this is our first cursory, if we

8
9

So we'll take a lunch break,

have any specific questions to get into detail, it

10

might be better for us to get into a written type of

11

question format so that we can get written and

12

specific responses.

13
14

Next to come up, Mr. Ginoza, who would you
like to have with us?

15

MR. L. GINOZA:

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

18

We have Public Works on the next agenda.

I believe we have one request, according to

your handout.
MR. L. GINOZA:

Public Works actually has no line item

19

grants, but they have some grant revenues that they

20

may want to discuss, and that can be found on the

21

Budget Proposal, page 31-18, where it lists some

22

CHAIR KANE:

That's the details?

23

details.

24

MR. L. GINOZA:

25

CHAIR KANE:

I'm sorry, 31-18 of

Budget proposal.

Program.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

CHAI R KANE:

3

MR. L. GINOZA:

4

CHAIR KANE:

Program.

31-18 .
Yes.

31-18 of your Program, Mr. Carroll.

5

almost the end of the Program.

6

is under grant revenue, okay?

And, Members, this

Good morning, Mr. Arakawa.

7

Which is

Why don't you go

8

ahead and introduce yourself and your Division Chief

9

for the record's sake, and then we can proceed with

10

your opening remarks to the Program description.

11

MR. ARAKAWA:

12

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I think you might want to see if it's on.

13

Thank you, go ahead.

14

there you go, with the light on, that's -- try your

15

best.

16

MR. ARAKAWA:

Push it up and if it's

I think the microphone may have just died.

17

Anyway, I have with me today our Solid Waste

18

Division Chief, Tracy Takamine, and he can go over

19

some of the grant revenue that we received in our

20

Solid Waste program.

21

can go over some of our Solid Waste grants which we

22

in fact propose to give out.

23

MR. TAKAMINE:

Also

if we had the chance, we

l

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

24

the procedure is on this.

25

down.

I don't know what

I guess I'll just go

Under Deposit Beverage Container Program,
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1

welre looking at a possible revenue from the State

2

of about 1.1 to $1.2 million.

3

approximately $350,000 that we had currently

4

allocated this FY for the Kihei recycle -- the new

5

Kihei Recycle Redemption Center that was postponed

6

due to some problems with the contract which the

7

State is going to rollover the funds basically to

8

this FY.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Total, this includes

Excuse me, Mr. Takamine, just for

10

clarification, there's an item on the Program

11

Budget, Members, on page 18-49 under the

12

Department's Division Program that lists operation

13

expenses for alternative programs, contractual

14

services in the amount of 680,000, other services in

15

the amount of 284,500, and a County grant subsidy in

16

the amount of 345,000.

17

referencing, the 345?

18

back to this one.

19

about the 350 dollar amount.

20
21

MR. TAKAMINE:

And if not, then weill get

I know I just heard you talk
Can you hear me?

I guess I was looking at -- under 16-108,

under the Diversion Program.

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MR. TAKAMINE:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

Is that the one that youlre

Details?
Yes.
Members, thank you for your patience.

16-108

of your Details book, which is the second to the
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last page before Transportation.
MR. TAKAMINE:

Basically what I was going over was the FY

3

'07 request column, where it shows -- actually it

4

shows 770,736, but, again, we're projecting that

5

that value -- or that number will be closer to 1.2

6

to 1.1 million.

7

CHAIR KANE:

8

MR. TAKAMINE:

9

Where are you showing that?
I'm not showing that.

I'm saying that

the -- if you look on that page, 16-108, it

10

currently shows under the Deposit Beverage Container

11

Program, under the FY '07 column a total of 770,736.

12

Is that correct?

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

number?

15

MR. TAKAMINE:

The question is you're coming up with a new

We're coming up with -- that's correct.

16

Because we did not complete the Kihei Recycle

17

Redemption Center this FY.

18

cancel the project due to some problems with the

19

contract.

20

approximately $350,000 that was allocated this FY so

21

that we can do it in FY '07.

22

for that line item would be about 1.1 to $1.2

23

million.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

We basically had to

The State is now going to be rolling over

So projected revenue

Mr. Arakawa, if you can, please, provide the

Committee with something in writing to this effect,
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please.

We'd appreciate that.

2

MR. ARAKAWA:

We can do that, Mr. Chair.

3

CHAI R KANE:

4

MR. TAKAMINE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Moving on to the Glass Recovery Program.

Any questions in this area?

7

I'm sorry.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

Mr. Chair.
Ms. Johnson.

Yes, I'm sorry to interrupt you,

Tracy.

10

CHAIR KANE:

No, go ahead.

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I just wanted to find out, because

12

of the destruction or the damage that was also done

13

to the Lahaina plant, will there be any additional

14

money that you will be seeking in the grant revenue

15

side from the Deposit Beverage Container Fund to

16

either repair or replace that facility that is now

17

no longer in operation?

18

MR. TAKAMINE:

For FY '07 we actually have in our capital

19

improvement budget funding for design and probably a

20

PERI or preliminary engineer report, for the new

21

Lahaina Recycle Redemption Center.

22

existing one that was damaged, we're in the process

23

of just basically getting back up and running.

24

need to do some earth work, take away some debris

25

that was washed down and deposited in the area that

As for the
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1

containers were put in.

2

getting that back in operation in a week or two.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So we were looking at

Okay, so the 1.1 or the 1.2

4

million which you stated would be in grant revenue,

5

then, that would include the improvements through

6

CIP that you just spoke of, or would that be taken

7

from another area?

8
9

MR. TAKAMINE:

That I believe is taken from our CIP

budget, not from that program.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

11

MR. TAKAMINE:

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

For a PER.
All right, when we get to CIP, I'm

13

going to ask specifically with grant revenue, I

14

would be looking that no money should be coming from

15

CIP or from our County coffers to support a program

16

that basically is a deposit beverage facility.

17

would be looking, Mr. Chair, for money -- additional

18

monies coming into this program to support any kind

19

of CIP improvements.

20
21
22
23

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

So I

Thank you.

Additional questions?

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.

Mr. Takamine, on

16-107.

24

CHAIR KANE:

345?

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah.

There's that County grant
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1

subsidy line that goes from basically $25,000 to

2

$345,000.

3

that?

4

MR. TAKAMINE:

Would you provide an explanation for

Well, 25,000 we were authorized last year.

5

I wasn't here last year.

I understand that the

6

Solid Waste Division asked for I believe it was

7

$100,000 for grant projects and was given 25.

8

cannot explain why in '06 we were given 25, but

9

between '06 to '07 we're asking for 345.

So I

I can

10

break that down on the grants that we're looking at.

11

Is that what you want?

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, I guess it's a little

13

awkward, when all the other departments have their

14

grants in a certain format and then this one comes

15

up as a lump sum.

16

you're talking about now, with the different

17

diversion programs, recycling programs, et cetera?

18

MR. ARAKAWA:

So is that money the same as what

Maybe I can clarify, I think what Tracy had

19

been talking about earlier is Deposit Beverage

20

Container Program, and all of the diversion program

21

monies are monies that would come into the County.

22

And the 345 that you're referring to on 16-107 are

23

the grants that we're proposing to give out to

24

various organizations.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So it's

Oh, I see.

Okay.
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1

MR. ARAKAWA:

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

-- two different things.
So one is revenues, the other is

revenues out.

4

MR. ARAKAWA:

Yes, exactly.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

MR. ARAKAWA:

Okay.

And in answer to your question, we can

7

provide the Committee with a more detailed listing

8

of both of these.

9
10

CHAIR KANE:

We'll be posing the question in writing,

Ms. Tavares.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR KANE:

15
16

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Yeah, we identified that item as well.

Yeah.

I was a little confused.

Mr. Takamine, why don't you go ahead

and proceed.
MR. TAKAMINE:

Continuing on, again, to clarify that.

17

This is grant revenues that is coming in from the

18

State.

19

it shows 7,500 salaries, 300,000 for operations, for

20

a total of 307,500.

21

given information from the State since we submitted

22

our budget that we're actually getting a total of

23

16[000.

24

program.

25

and wages and an operations total of 16,000.

Under the glass recovery program, I believe

That has changed.

We've been

So we got a drastic reduction in this
So we're looking at about a $1[600 salary
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1

basically from what I'm told is the State basically

2

raided this fund and took about $2 million, for

3

whatever project I don't know, and reduced our

4

revenues from this project from

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

MR. TAKAMINE:

again, from

Continue.
No change in the Solid Waste grants.

We're

8

looking at $600,000, same with the Tire Disposal

9

Fund, no change, $100,000.

Used Oil Recovery

10

Program, we have a slight change there.

11

was 86,400.

12

at a total of 65,000 for the program, salaries and

13

wages from 6,400 to 6,500.

14

CHAIR KANE:

Yes.

Projected

We're now being told that we're looking

Any questions?

Mr. Takamine, I'm sorry, I heard you

15

say 65,000 earlier.

16

Mr. Arakawa, if there's changes to the original

17

request that's before us that was submitted on March

18

15th, if you can, please, provide some updated

19

documentation to clarify what the actual numbers you

20

folks are going to be looking at, whether it's the

21

rollover of 350 or there's additional adjustments,

22

please.

23

MR. ARAKAWA:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

I guess we would ask

Okay, Mr. Chair.

We'll do that.

Members, okay, so we'll get that back in

writing.

Mr. Takamine.
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MR. TAKAMINE:

That concludes the revenues that we project

to be receiving from the State's.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay, any additional revenues or grant

program issues, Mr. Arakawa?
MR. ARAKAWA:

That would be it for Solid Waste, but we

6

have a couple of things we wanted to mention for

7

Engineering.

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

head.

10
11
12

Okay, we have Mr. Yamashita, the Division

Mr. Takamine, thank you very much.
MR. ARAKAWA:

I would refer you to page 16-26 of your

Details.

13

CHAIR KANE:

16-26.

14

MR. ARAKAWA:

Yes.

15

CHAIR KANE:

16
17

Mr. Arakawa, 16-26?

Members, that's the final page before the

Highway Fund in your Details.
MR. ARAKAWA:

And I also have Cary Yamashita from our

18

Engineering Division to provide additional

19

information.

20

the Federal Highway Administration Intermodal

21

Surface Transportation Efficiency Act, Highway and

22

Other Transportation Grants, we have $14,300,000

23

listed for Fiscal Year '07.

24

breakdown of that as far as estimated amounts of

25

revenues that we anticipate receiving from the

Under the Fiscal Year '07 request for

And I can give you a
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1

Federal government for the specific projects in

2

Fiscal Year '07, and maybe Cary can go over that.

3

MR. YAMAMURA:

Yes, we do have several projects, couple

4

projects have been carryover projects due to the

5

fact that we weren't able to go under construction

6

last fiscal year.

7

estimations, and if you have any questions, you can

8

pose them to me after.

I'll just briefly go through our

The first one is Piikea Bikeway.

9

We expect a

10

reimbursement from the State of 1.2 million.

11

an ongoing construction project in Kihei.

12

proj ect is curb ramps, CY '04,

13

phase in the present consent decree, and that

14

project is also ongoing.

15

million reimbursement from the State for that

16

project.

'05.

That's

The next

That's our last

We're anticipating a $2

The -- we have several projects that we hope

17

18

to start construction in the near term.

Market

19

Street improvements, estimated start date September

20

of '06.

21

million this fiscal year -- well, in '07.

22

are bridge replacement projects.

23

Kaholopoo Bridge.

24

Waiahole Bridge, and Pahihi Bridge, and they make up

25

the balance of the expected reimbursements for the

We expect a reimbursement close to $4
The rest

The first one is

We have Papahawahawa Bridge,
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CIP program, which total up to 14.3 million.
CHAIR KANE:

Members, we'll also request just a follow up

3

in writing, just to have something as a status.

4

We'd appreciate that.

5

we'll defer those questions to later on in our

6

discussion?
Mr. Arakawa.

7

8
9

Any questions at this time or

MR. ARAKAWA:

One more line item, right under that you see

the U.S. Department of Agriculture Natural Resources

10

Conservation Service Grant, and that's an amount of

11

5.3 million that we anticipate receiving from the

12

NRCS, and this is for our Lahaina Watershed Flood

13

Control Project.

14
15

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Members, questions?

Seeing none.

16
17

Very good.

Mr. Arakawa, Mr. Yamashita, thank you very
much.

Appreciate it.

18

Mr. Ginoza, that finishes Public Works.

19

have Transportation and Water last, as well as

20

Planning, if I'm not mistaken.

21

Planning at this time?

22

MR. ARAKAWA:

23

CHAIR KANE:

We

You ready for

We have Planning here.
Okay, is it going to be -- Mr. Boteilho,

24

perfect timing walking in the door, our Deputy

25

Director, along with Mr. Clayton Yoshida, who can
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provide assistance.

2
3

DeputYr if you can introduce yourself for the
record r please.

4

And r Members

5

MR. L. GINOZA:

Mr. Chair.

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

MR. L. GINOZA:

I'd like to

8

CHAIR KANE:

reference point.

9

MR. L. GINOZA:

I'd like to direct the members to page 3

Mr. Ginoza r if you can provide us with a --

10

of the handout, where it's under the Planning

11

grants, and we have Planning representatives here.

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

MR. BOTEILHO:

Thank you.
Thank your Mr. Chair and Members of the

14

Budget Committee.

15

Planning Director.

16

who is the Planning Program Administrator for the

17

Current Planning Division.

18

If it's okaYr could I start with WMSA/Tri-Isle

19

Resource Center?

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

MR. BOTEILHO:

I'm Wayne Boteilho r Deputy
And with me is Clayton Yoshida r

We only have two grants.

Go ahead, because that's the larger, yes.
Mr. Chair, our request is for $225,000.

22

This would be an increase of $25,000.

Planning

23

Department is in support of this increase for

24

several reasons.

25

reasons.

I'll start with the practical

One is that this is the first -- well,
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1

when we came into office, this organization was

2

funded at $200,000.

3

at 155,000, 165,000, and 200,000.

4

that out, it comes out to about 185,000 a year.

5

they've had to cut back and become efficient.

6

as we know, inflation and the cost of doing business

7

has gone up.

If you average
So
And

We also support them because they are the

8
9

Since then they've been funded

very bulk of our community outreach program.

Small

10

towns are something that we like to preserve on this

11

island.

12

Wailuku, Makawao, Paia, and Haiku.

13

provide assistance to other towns, such as Hana and

14

Lanai City and so I forth.

15

They have active programs going on in
They also

And finally, we support them because they are

16

working on several plans itself.

The Makawao

17

Strategic Plan -- I have a copy here -- the Paia

18

Business Capacity Study, Paia Design Guidelines,

19

Schematic plan for Makawao Town Square, and a second

20

phase of the Haiku Strategic Plan.

21

they would need this extra funding to complete these

22

plans, and it's very important the General Plan

23

process that is -- that is coming up.

24

they -- having them work on these plans is like

25

having two extra staff.

So we believe
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1
2
3

And that's all I have for now, Mr. Chair, and
we are available for any questions on this item.
CHAIR KANE:

Any questions for our Deputy with respect to

4

the $225,000 request before us for the Wailuku Main

5

Street Association Tri-Isle Main Street Resource

6

Center?

7

MR. BOTEILHO:

Hearing none.
Thank you.

Mr. Boteilho.

Our next request is for the

8

Hawaii Sea Grant program, and, Mr. Chair, may I turn

9

this over to Mr. Yoshida?

10

CHAIR KANE:

11

MR. YOSHIDA:

Mr. Yoshida has the floor.
Good morning, Mr. Chair, Members of the

12

Budget and Finance Committee.

13

requesting funding for the Maui Town and Coastal

14

Processes Extension Project.

15

of the project.

16

the cost of the Maui County Coastal Processes

17

Extension Agent.

18

person as a resource person in conferring on matters

19

relative to development along the shoreline.

20

CHAIR KANE:

The Department is

This would be year 10

Basically it goes to help to cover

The Department depends upon this

Members, questions in this area for this

21

request, which is similar, a level request from last

22

year?

Hearing none.

Thank you very much.

23

Deputy, Mr. Yoshida, thank you very much.

24

Yes, Ms. Johnson.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, I had a question, because In
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1

previous years

2

that explained it once.

3

in -- and I think it was for a position, and I don't

4

know if it was grant money that was coming in, but

5

it was money I think for Historic District Advisor

6

or Cultural Services Specialist, and I believe there

7

was a rotation of grant money that would come in.

8

And I don't know what the name of the grant resource

9

was, but I just wondered if this was a year that was

and I think it was Mr. Yoshida
We used to have monies

10

not in there or if I'm not recalling that it wasn't

11

a part of this section.

12

address that briefly.

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

MR. BOTEILHO:

15

So if you could just

Mr. Boteilho.
Yes, Mr. Chair.

This sounds like the

Certified Local Government Grant Program.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

MR. BOTEILHO:

Uh-huh, yes.

And it is in our budget this year.

That is

18

a grant that we receive, though.

We don't -- we

19

don't give out.

20

government through the State DLNR, and that's monies

21

that comes to us, and what we do is we have our

22

Cultural Resources Planner and other staff work out

23

a scope of work, and primarily it's to help the

24

Cultural Resources Commission.

25

projects, studies, education for the CRC and that

This comes from the Federal

And they do various
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sort of thing, but not for staff.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And the only reason I ask

3

that, Mr. Chair, was because we just finished one

4

Department where we went over grant revenue.

5

was just not sure of, you know, where we would ask

6

this question.

7

Budget, that's fine, but I was just wondering that

8

if it was grant revenue, should it be addressed in

9

this area.

10

11
12
13
14

CHAIR KANE:

So I

So if it's in the regular Operations

Thank you.

Any further questions before I excuse the

Deputy and Mr. Yoshida?

Hearing none.

Gentlemen, thank you very much.

Appreciate

your presence.
Mr. Ginoza, the Chair's preference is if we

15

can deal with the Water Department at this time.

16

know we have some large items within Transportation,

17

and given the time, I'd like to defer the

18

Transportation until after our lunch break.

19

will give Mr. Ginoza, our Director of

20

Transportation, an opportunity to break away now and

21

we'll see him after lunch.

22

can call up our Director from the Water Department

23

and his resource personnel to come forward.

24
25

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

The Water
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1

Department's grants are listed on page 3 of the

2

handout.

3

4
5

CHAIR KANE:

With a couple of minutes to spare, good

morning, Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN:

Good morning, Mr. Chair.

Basically our

6

request here for grants are grants that we've done

7

in the past.

8

one, it's the Haleakala.

9

done also in the past, so it's basically just

10

11

I think maybe there might be one new
Okay, the Haleakala was

repeating our grants.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay, Members, you have a handout that was

12

given to you a little earlier during the break that

13

gives you the specific descriptions.

14

questions on any of the items that are before us on

15

the Mayor's proposal?

Hearing none.

Ms. Johnson, question?

16

17

Are there any

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, because of the continued

18

problems, and particularly with the rainfall that

19

we've had this year, I look at our Miconia and our

20

watershed protection grant monies, are we winning,

21

are we losing, are we holding our own?

22

just -- I'm concerned about it, given what's going

23

on.

24
25

MR. TENGAN:

Because I

Mr. Chair, if I may, I'd like to refer this

to Ellen Kraftsow, our Planning Program Manager.
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CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Ms. Kraftsow, if you can identify

yourself for the record, please.
MS. KRAFTSOW:

I'm Ellen Kraftsow.

Thank you.

I work for the

4

Department of Water Supply in the Water Resource and

5

Planning Division.
Mr. Chair, Councilmember Johnson, winning is

6

7

a funny word.

I think that at this point they're

8

going for containment before they even try for

9

eradication, and I would hesitate to say that we

10

that the problem is even contained at this point.

11

That's all I can really offer you.

12

detail on specific status and measures and programs

13

and progress, I can get that.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

If you want more

Yeah, I really would like to if

15

you're able to.

I would like some kind of an

16

indication, even to just get closer to containment.

17

And particularly with the extensive rainfall that

18

we've had this year, my fear is that we will

19

continue to lose ground, even approaching

20

containment.

21

kind of a status and update and projection as to

22

what it would cost us to just even maintain the

23

status quo.

So if you could provide us with some

24

MS. KRAFTSOW:

I will request a more detailed update.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Thank you very much.
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CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

in this area?

Any further questions, Members,

Seeing none.

Mr. Tengan, thank you very much.

3

We

4

appreciate you hanging in there and sitting tight

5

with us.

6

Yeah, Ms. Kraftsow, thank you very much.

7

Members, it is 12 o'clock.

We'll go ahead

8

and take our lunch break.

The Chair intends to

9

bring back Transportation so we can finish up in the

10

grants area and then we will move on to CIP with the

11

leftover time that we have until we wrap it up this

12

afternoon around 3:30.
Time now is 12 o'clock.

13
14

recess until 1:30, Members.

15

(Gavel) .

16

RECESS:

17

RECONVENE:

18

CHAIR KANE:

We will stand in

We are in recess.

12: 00 p.m.
1: 33 p.m.

(Gavel).

Good afternoon, Members.

19

reconvened.

20

Finance Committee meeting.

We're

This is the April 3rd, 2006 Budget and

21

For the attendance this afternoon we have

22

Members Pontanilla, Mateo, Johnson, Carroll, and

23

Kane present.

24
25

We're going to try to finalize our review of
the grants, Members.

We have our final Department
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to talk story with.

Mr. Kyle Ginoza, the Director

2

of Transportation, can be invited up at this time.

3

If you can please join us here.
Mr. Lloyd Ginoza, our Budget Director, if you

4
5

have any opening remarks for the afternoon session

6

in this area.

7

MR. L. GINOZA:

Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair, Members.

8

The -- I'd like to direct you to page 3 of the

9

handout from Thursday.

We have the list of the

10

Transportation grants, and we have the

11

representative from the Department of Transportation

12

here, so I'll defer to him.

13

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, thank you.

And before -- Mr. Ginoza,

14

Mr. Kyle Ginoza, before I recognize you,

just some

15

housekeeping measures, Members.

16

larger areas.

17

questions, but we will be coming back with

18

Transportation in the area of Operations, and if it

19

links in, then we can go in a more in depth

20

questions -- a line of questioning for this area,

21

but just so you folks have a better understanding, a

22

clear understanding of what this is about, what it

23

entails, and if you have any questions there to help

24

yourself to asking questions, but, again, we're

25

going to come back to operation.

I know there's some

I ask you that we ask some general
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1

where the bulk of all of our discussion is going to

2

take place, and this just helps tie it all in.
Also, for the record, we have Members Tavares

3
4

and Molina in attendance this afternoon.
With that, any opening remarks, Mr. K Ginoza?

5

6

MR. K. GINOZA:

Sure.

Thank you for the opportunity.

7

I'll start off with the grants to Maui Economic

8

opportunity that's in my Department's Budget.

9

Basically the 2007 Budget reflects no change in the

10

actual scope of service from '06, but also includes

11

a bus purchase line item of $335,600 for two

12

25-passenger vehicles and one eight-passenger

13

vehicle.
Budget removes the $400,000 for land purchase

14
15

that was included in Fiscal '06.

And for fuel

16

gasoline costs, an increase of 30 percent was

17

included to be consistent with our Departments.

18

well there was a 5 percent cost of living adjustment

19

for all other costs that was included for the Maui

20

Economic Opportunity grants.

As

As far as the Public Transit Grant, the

21
22

difference from Fiscal '06 to '07 is this year for

23

Fiscal '07 we included year 1 of the Short-Range

24

Transit Plan that we completed at the beginning of

25

2005.

Essentially what the difference is is that
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1

most routes would be from 6 o'clock in the morning,

2

earlier in the morning, to 9 o'clock at night, so

3

later at night.

4

Sundays.

5

transit vehicles that would be funded under the '07

6

Budget with a few of the routes having two buses per

7

route.

8
9

And there also is service on

There would be six routes, utilizing nine

The 88 paratransit transportation would also
be included for all of the routes utilizing eight

10

paratransit vehicles.

The service will still serve

11

Kahului, Wailuku, Kihei, Wailea, Maalaea, Lahaina,

12

Kaanapali and Napili, so it's the same service areas

13

that we currently accommodate in Fiscal '06.

14

year 3 we'll include Upcountry, so for the Fiscal

15

'07 Budget, should it be adopted, it won't include

16

Upcountry for the fixed route service.

In

17

The budget also includes four commuter routes

18

that I previously mentioned in previous discussions.

19

If you'd like me to go into further detail later,

20

I'd be happy to.

21

public transit.

22

And so that's if for now for

As far as the Air Ambulance Grant, the Fiscal

23

'07 amount is still undetermined.

We haven't been

24

able to get a final amount or a proposed amount from

25

the State Department of Health as far as how much
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1

the actual requirement for the County will be, but

2

they have indicated that it will up slightly due to

3

higher fuel costs and insurance costs, as well as

4

there has been, at least in recent months, a higher

5

utilization of the service.

6

adjustments with regards to that.

7

currently going, as you know, through the process

8

with the State Legislature, so soon we should find

9

out what the County requirement will be.

10

So there may be some
The State is

There has been 86 flights for the first nine

11

months of Fiscal '06 through the end of last month

12

and 20 in March, for your information.

13

grounding of the Hawaii Air Ambulance, there was an

14

increase in service.

15

January and February, so it went up quite

16

substantially in March.

17

airplane occurred on 3/8, and since then there were

18

16 transfers, all of which -- all but one were

19

interfacility transfers, meaning they weren't from

20

the scene.

21

the Hawaii Air Ambulance being grounded.

22

give you an idea, basically it would be -- would

23

have been higher probably if the weather had been

24

better.

25

inclement on Oahu, so we probably didn't get as many

Due to the

There's 12 and 12 both in

The accident with the

So they took up much of the burden of
And to

So as you know, the weather had been quite
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1

flights as we could have had the weather been a lot

2

better.

3

And the last grant is the school bus program

4

that we subsidize for student transport.

We're

5

requesting a flat budget from Fiscal '06.

6

is still in the process of implementing the pre-paid

7

program where the students or the parents would pay

8

by the month and we're still working through that as

9

far as getting the reimbursements finalized and so

The State

10

forth.

11

affect the total reimbursement required.

12

year it's been roughly 80 to 90,000 out of the

13

151,000 that had been allotted, but without knowing

14

the impact of the pre-paid program, I'm hesitant to

15

reduce the amount.

16
17

18
19
20
21

So we're unsure at this point how it will
Up to this

But that's all I have for now, Chair.

Thank

you.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Members.

We'll open it up for questions,

Any questions in these areas?

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you

t

Mr. Molina.

Chairman.

Goods afternoon, Mr. Ginoza.

22

MR. K. GINOZA:

Good afternoon.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

On the bus service, you mentioned

24

that the Upcountry district you're looking at year

25

3, so in essence Fiscal Year '08, then.
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why it wasn't included for this year?

2

my understanding that there has been an increased

3

amount of I guess interest in an Upcountry route.

4

MR. K. GINOZA:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

MR. K. GINOZA:

Because it is

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Ginoza.
When we went out for our public hearings,

7

when we developed the Short-Range Transit Plan, the

8

general feeling from the meetings were that the

9

service currently being provided with the rural

10

shuttle through the MEO-funded service would be

11

adequate in the short term, but they would like to

12

see it implemented at some point.

13

well, when we developed the plan, that was the

14

sentiment.

15

indication, you know, that people call in, as far as

16

wanting Upcountry service, the general feeling

17

hasn't changed, I don't think, that the rural

18

shuttle is currently serving the need for now.

19

So initially

And while there has been some

When I had mentioned the commuter runs, what

20

we have had a lot of input as far as the Upcountry

21

area was to bring workers into Central and the

22

resort areas, and that's why we are proposing four

23

commuter runs, two of which would be from Upcountry

24

to serve that need.

25

don't know like five or six Upcountry rural shuttles

In the short term, we have I
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1

that run three times a week that currently serve or

2

attempt to serve the needs of Upcountry.

3

kind of why it was in a later year of the plan,

4

because we wanted to build upon what we currently

5

have in

6

then slowly implement other regions of Maui.

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
And

8
9

you know

t

t

So that's

with the current ridership and

Okay, thank you.

I guess, maybe, Chair, through your

Staff or we could ask a question, if I could get

10

figures from you, Mr. Ginoza, what it would cost to

11

implement the plan, I guess, for the Fiscal Year '08

12

for Upcountry.

13

MR. K. GINOZA:

Sure.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

15

CHAIR KANE:

And routes.

Thank you.

Thank you.

And just for clarification

t

16

Mr. Ginoza/ the Fiscal Year '07 proposal/ the

17

Mayor's proposal represents year 2 or year 1 of the

18

plan?

19

MR. K. GINOZA:

20

CHAIR KANE:

Year 1.

Year 1.

So Mr. Molina's question of asking

21

for the Upcountry incorporation in year 3, that

22

incorporation wouldn't come till Fiscal Year '09; is

23

that correct?

24

MR. K. GINOZA:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Yes.

Okay,

SOt

Mr. Molina, again, just --
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

2

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Okay.

Question on the public transit program.

3

Since the first discussion that we had regarding

4

that -- the report that was done for us or the

5

study, it was acknowledged by yourself as well as

6

the Staff who put together that report that it was

7

done in a much shorter time than it would normally

8

take.

9

versus the five or six months that they say it

I think it was done in two and a half months,

10

normally takes.

11

any type of updates or refinements or adjustments to

12

the report since it was first completed and provided

13

for you as well as this committee?

14

MR. K. GINOZA:

In light of that, have there been

There hasn't been any updates from the

15

plan.

16

going to be over about two and a half months, but we

17

had asked for an extension from this body and it

18

actually -- we actually took another month or so.

19

So it was -- in the end I don't think that we felt

20

or the consultants felt that, you know, we were

21

hasty in certain areas that weren't -- certain areas

22

weren't analyzed as fully as we wanted, but we

23

haven't gone out for additional input considering

24

that the plan is roughly a year old.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Actually, what happened was initially it was

Okay, is there any intent to do any type of
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1

adjustments to the plan or yearly updates or any

2

type of updates?

3

MR. K. GINOZA:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

6

Not at this point.

Okay, so no intentions of the Department to

do updates on the transit program?
MR. K. GINOZA:

Depending on how -- how this body funds

7

this year, I mean, weill see whether or not we need

8

to update it again.

9

mentioned that was not part of the scope was to do a

I mean, one area that we had

10

more in depth surveying of the riders, but we felt

11

that, you know, that was something that -

12

find is as we institute additional routes, the

13

riding public pretty -- pretty quickly starts to

14

patronize the service.

15

additional, you know, 30 to $50,000 was warranted to

16

talk to the riding public more fully.

17

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

So we didnlt feel an

Just for clarification -- and,

18

Members, 1111 release the floor.

19

get clarity on the public transit program.

20
21

MR. K. GINOZA:

11m just trying to

I do have the figure for the year 3 in

front of me, if I could answer Mr. Molina.

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MR. K. GINOZA:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

what we

We can provide that in writing.
Oh, okay.

Yeah, weill get that, Members.

The current

requests or the 107 proposal that goes from 1172 --

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

BF 4/3/06

127

1

$1.1 million up to $3.5 million, if you can clarify,

2

you're going to have the existing routes that will

3

be extended as far as time so the morning and the

4

evening times will be expanded.

5

to Sundays and it will also expand the four commuter

6

routes as well as the paratransit routesi those are

7

the additions?

8
9

MR. K. GINOZA:

It will also expand

Yes, and additionally on the -- on these

six routes, some of them will have two buses per

10

route so that right now we have two-hour headways or

11

two hours between buses.

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

MR. K. GINOZA:

It will go to one hour.

The frequency, in other words.
Yeah.

Another thing too is in Fiscal '07

14

we're proposing that the County retain the fare

15

fare box revenue as guided by the Fare Transit

16

Administration.

17
18

CHAIR KANE:

What's the current fare box amount, do you

know off the top of your head?

19

MR. K. GINOZA:

20

CHAIR KANE:

I don't know off the top of my head.

Okay.

Sorry.

Thank you, Members r for

21

allowing that leeway.

Any other questions in any of

22

these areas?

23

ambulance program.

24

during the first year, and so this is just a

25

follow-up to find out if in this current proposal

Chair has a question on the air
I know there was discussion
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1

there's any status on the development of a plan for

2

landing pads, infrastructure development to

3

accommodate the program itself.

4

status or are you --

5

MR. K. GINOZA:

6

CHAIR KANE:

Has there been any

As far as the landing pad at the hospital?

From my understanding, the original

7

discussion talked about the development of

8

infrastructure to accommodate the -- to accommodate

9

the program.

And I know that at some point we were

10

even landing in one of the playing fields to

11

accommodate the program itself.

12

set plan or a developed plan that would give us a

13

description of the infrastructural needs and the

14

connectivity between the program itself and the

15

facilities that are being utilized?

16
17

18

MR. K. GINOZA:

I'm not certain at this point.

give me the question in writing,
CHAIR KANE:

Has there been any

I can respond.

We'll go ahead and do that.

19

Thank you.

20

area?

If you

We'll follow up.

Members, any more questions in this

Mr. Molina.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

Followed by Mr. Pontanilla.
Mr. Ginoza, on the bus replacement

24

matching funds of -- well, first of all, the buses

25

that we're looking at purchasing, are we looking at
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1

more -- something more fuel efficient, something

2

that runs on -- I don't know what our buses are

3

currently running on.

4

biodiesel?

5

MR. K. GINOZA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

7

Are they running on

Biodiesel.
Oh, okay, so this would be the same

type of bus we're looking at purchasing?

8

MR. K. GINOZA:

Yeah.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

And then -- let's see.

10

think you answered that question for me.

11

fine.

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I

Okay, I'm

Thank you, Chairman.
Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you, Chair.

You know for

14

the Community Transportation Service, we're -- oh,

15

you're not asking for any funding for that?

16

MR. K. GINOZA:

Oh, I think that one, what happened last

17

year was there wasn't enough funds in the General

18

Fund, so some of the money went to the Highway Fund.

19

So this year we're just proposing putting that whole

20

program within the General Fund.

21

think that's what you're talking about, that

22

134,000.

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24

MR. K. GINOZA:

25

That's why -- I

$131,173.

Yeah, that basically was just a leak over

into the Highway Fund just from the budgeting side,
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1

but this year it's all in the General Fund.

2

why there's that subtraction from the Highway Fund.

3

But the program remains the same.

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Good.

That's

And the increase for I

5

guess the dialysis transportation and the Ala Hou

6

program is basically fuel?

7

MR. K. GINOZA:

Yeah, that's what I had mentioned, 30

8

percent for the fuel costs and an additional 5

9

percent cost of living adjustment for the balance of

10

the cost.

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

More questions?

Mr. Molina.

Thank you, Chairman.

On the Public

14

Transit Program, you know, you mentioned I guess

15

ridership has increased, if not this meeting at

16

another one, but I'm trying to tie it in with your

17

EP request.

18

personnel.

19

incentives to increase ridership?

20

any projection as to when will -- you know,

21

eventually will the program reduce the amount of

22

subsidy from the County to -- well, we know it won't

23

be more or less self sufficient, but it will at

24

least reduce the amount of subsidy from the County?

25

When do you see that projection taking place?

I know you requested some more
Are you looking at providing additional
And do you have
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1

MR. K. GINOZA:

With the -- I'll answer the EP part first.

2

With the EP we're asking for two EPs for the public

3

transit side of the equation, one of which would

4

handle the -- primarily the ADA intake qualification

5

type stuff, as well as the other one to help with

6

the public outreach and data collection to try to

7

optimize the routes.

8

more on the optimization or increase efficiency of

9

the Public Transit Program.

10
11
12
13
14

So really one would be focused

As far as your second question about -- what
was it again, sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

When do you see the bus system

becoming less reliant on County subsidies?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

I don't know if -- I mean if you

15

look at typical rural transportation programs, the

16

fare box is maybe, you know, like 10 percent or

17

maybe 15 percent, if you're lucky, and so, you know,

18

right now we're at roughly 16, 17 percent, looking

19

at, you know, what we have so far this year.

20

don't know if -- how much more we can reduce the

21

subsidy.

22

as, you know, exterior advertising or some kinds of

23

partnerships with different establishments, but as

24

far as the riding public, reducing the subsidy,

25

it's -- I don't see it being more than, say -- you

So I

I mean, we can look at alternatives such
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1

know, for instance, The Bus is in the high 20s, so

2

that's kind of what we can shoot for is maybe, you

3

know, reducing it by some percentage, but not ever

4

coming close to reducing the subsidy entirely.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6

MR. K. GINOZA:

7

I see.

It's something that's going to be

continued to be a great subsidy to have the service.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

9

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Okay, thank you.
Any final questions, Members, in

10

this area of transportation?

11

coming back into our operations part and we'll have

12

a more in depth discussion there.

Seeing none.

Mr. Ginoza, thank you very much.

13
14

MR. K. GINOZA:

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

And, again, we'll be

Thank you.

We appreciate your presence here this

afternoon.

17

MR. K. GINOZA:

18

CHAIR KANE:

My pleasure.

With that, if we can ask the Police

19

Department to make themselves available.

20

Chief is on his way in.

I know

Mr. Budget Director, Mr. Ginoza, if you can

21
22

provide us with some brief opening remarks as we

23

broach, Members, the CIP -- CIP portion of our

24

budget.

25

MR. L. GINOZA:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

As the Police
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1

representatives get down here, I'd like to just

2

inform the members that we had three handouts given

3

out for this afternoon's session.

4

sheet handout, which is a summary of the CIP

5

projects, and I'd like to describe that in more

6

detail in a few seconds.

7

the Police Department explaining a situation where,

8

you know, they've -- since the budget preparation

9

they had an opportunity to receive some grants which

There's a single

And there's a letter from

10

would eliminate the need for one of the CIP

11

projects.

12

I've prepared a summary by Departments of all the

13

projects, and I've also included the project sheets

14

so that, you know, we don't flip back and forth in

15

the -- in the Program Budget.

16

help in the -- to facilitate the discussion.

17

Getting back to the summary --

18

CHAIR KANE:

And the third item is what I've done was

So I hope that would

Excuse me, Mr. Ginoza, before you begin, I

19

thought you said you handed out three handouts

20

today.

21

MR. L. GINOZA:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

Yes.

I know we got a letter from Chief regarding

the microwave radio link issue.

24

MR. L. GINOZA:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah.

That's one.

The summary of the CIP projects,
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is that one a separate one as well?

2

MR. L. GINOZA:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

5

That is correct.

And then what is the third one, you said it's

a single sheet?
MR. L. GINOZA:

I apologize.

Actually, there's three more

6

sheets.

7

Department, one is for the Civil Defense, and one is

8

for Management.

9
10

CHAIR KANE:

Three more bunches, one is for the Police

Okay, I see that.

you've given us.

11

MR. L. GINOZA:

12

CHAIR KANE:

13
14

It's in the packet that

Yeah, my apologies.

Thank you.

Sorry, Members.

Mr. Ginoza.
MR. L. GINOZA:

So if you look at the summary sheet, the

15

single sheet handout, what I tried to do was just

16

illustrate the components of funding for the

17

different projects by Departments.

18

County funds from Operations in the first column.

19

In the second column is the parks assessment, which

20

are funds from special assessments, and the water

21

assessment.

22

for CIP projects.

23

Fund Loan, the Lapsed Bond Funds, and the new issue

24

bonds that's being proposed of 29.45 million.

25

that brings to the total County funds, and I've also

We have the

Again, those are special assessments
Then we have the State Revolving
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1

included the Federal grants and the State grants to

2

balance out to the total project costs per the

3

individual worksheets.

4

defer to the Police Department.

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

MR. PHILLIPS:

So with that! I'd like to

Good afternoon! Chief Phillips.
Good afternoon! Chair and Members.

Thank

I am -- I'll summarize our

7

you for having us.

8

project requests! and then I have some other staff

9

here that maybe I should introduce! because they may

10

be able to tell you some details on the projects in

11

case you have those type of questions.
Next to me is Captain Larry Hudson! and he's

12

13

currently our CIP Coordinator.

14

the projects.

15

Jeff Amaral! who's heading up the radio project! and

16

he's here in case there's questions in that area.

17

Of course! Greg Takahashi! our Business Manager is

18

here; Assistant Chief Nakashima! who is Larry's

19

boss

20

the Use of Force Training Sergeant out of our Plans

21

and Training! he'll have one of the projects, he's

22

here; Mary Wagner is our IT manager! and she's here

23

in case there's any questions for her; and then we

24

have Assistant Chief Yabuta; Captain Clayton Tom,

25

who's handling our Homeland Defense Grant! in case

l

He handles most of

We also have in the audience Captain

is here; Mark Joaquin, he's the Sergeant --
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1

there's questions in that area; Lloyd Yamashita is

2

our JCP Lieutenant, he's here; Walt Pacheco is also

3

here, he's our Radio Shop Manager.
And in case there's questions that I can't

4

5

answer, I'll bring them down as resources.

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

MR. PHILLIPS:

Thank you, Chief.
Our total CIP request for this budget would

8

be 6,385,000.

That's broken down into several

9

projects, and I'll just go through each project.

10

We're asking for $80,000 to hire a consultant.

11

has to do with our radio

12

up at Haleakala Crater.

13

facility where our radio equipment is located, but

14

the -- because of erosion, the area around the

15

building is eroding and we're afraid the building is

16

going to collapse and be gone.

17

Public Works.

18

private consultant to try and come up and look at it

19

and develop a plan to stop the erosion so we can

20

save that building.

21

CHAIR KANE:

one of our radio sites
This is a County-owned

So we talked to

They recommended that we hire a

Chief{ before you move forward,

just so

22

I'm going to just slow you down just a bit.

23

that project.

24

Communications Facility Site Repairs.

25

MR. PHILLIPS:

This

That's the Haleakala Crater

Yes, that's correct.
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1

CHAIR KANE:

So, Members, on the handout they have -- on

2

your Program Budget, in the CIP section, then you

3

can see your page there for 24-3 of your Program, it

4

gives the description, justification, just to assist

5

the Chief in his summary of the projects.
So, Chief, I'll just slow you down a half a

6
7

step here.

8

their pages so if they have any questions, they can

9

stop you and ask you.

10

MR. L. GINOZA:

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

MR. L. GINOZA:

13

I'll just allow the members to get to

All the Members --

Mr. Chair.

Yes.
I'd just like to clarify, the pages to the

budget proposal are attached to this sheet.

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

MR. PHILLIPS:

Yes.

Thank you.

Okay, if you have the sheet, I'll go down

16

from the top, then, if that's easier for the

17

members.

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

MR. PHILLIPS:

It could be easier for us.
Okay.

Thank you, Chief.

So I'll continue with the first

20

listed project is 60{000, and that is -- as we

21

talked about last year, we have

22

Police Station we have 47 of these air conditioned

23

coil handlers, and we have a scheduled replacement

24

of those handlers.

25

of them a year.

- at our Wailuku

We have to replace six to seven

So we're asking for 60,000 to
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1

continue with that.

2

year.

We had the first phase last

And is that complete?

3

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

4

MR. PHILLIPS:

I think so.

Yeah, we've done seven/ so we'd like to

5

continue with the replacement of those handlers.

6

That's just due to normal wear and tear/ and the

7

schedule to replace them/ we need to do about six to

8

seven a year.

9

Training Center Expansion.

The next project/ you see a Force
We had an indoor firing

10

range at our police station on the ground floor.

11

Couldn't really use it very often.

12

use it on weekends and after hours.

13

it wasn't used very often/ and it's a very large

14

space in our building.

15

probably outgrown that building a little bit/ so we

16

really had nowhere to do our use of force training/

17

our recruit training/ our annual recall training

18

with the officers/ any specialized training in that

19

area that we have to either go borrow a room at the

20

high school wrestling room or sometimes just use

21

outside.

22

We could only
So as a result/

And as you all know/ we've

So what we've done is try and renovate that

23

firing range into a use of force training center.

24

We've done some of it this year with some of our --

25

some funding that we had this year in the
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1

Countywide, and then we've also just used labor from

2

within the Department to move some of the firing

3

range equipment out.

4

$70,000 to continue the renovation, expansion of

5

that room to put in equipment.

6

mainly the area where we train our officers, but

7

there will also be some storage facilities for some

8

of our equipment that we use for the training and

9

hopefully an office for that training sergeant would

10
11

So this year we're asking for

It will serve as

go in that area as well.
The next project is the radio network

12

terminal room.

13

We need to expand that room, make it a little larger

14

just due to the changes in our radio system that are

15

going on right now.

16

try and expand that room.

17

That's on the roof of our building.

So we're looking at $160,000 to

Around then I spoke about the Haleakala

18

Crater/ 80,000/ that facility.

Next is the Kihei

19

station -- police station.

20

million for the design of that facility.

21

selected a location.

22

monies to do a conceptual design of the buildings.

23

We just finished that project and have the design

24

and an estimated cost on what it might be to build

25

that facility, and based on that we'd like to move

We're asking for $1.5

In this past year we had some
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1

forward with the design and hopefully next year ask

2

for the money to build that facility that's kind of

3

overdue.
Our current facility, as you know, is a store

4
5

front police station across from Kalama Park.

6

of the problems of course is we're in a flood zone

7

there.

8

supposed to be in there for five years.

9

on I think our eighth year in that facility.

10

Some

We've outgrown it, and we were actually only
We're going
So

we're hoping to move this new police station along.
The next is $300,000 for Countywide.

11

Several

12

projects, most of which are at the Wailuku station,

13

and there is a project at the Lahaina station that

14

we'd like to do, including replacing our car wash.

15

It's now eleven years old.

16

legs.

17

replace it.

18

so we're -- we're a year behind replacing that.

19

need to replace the gas system -- the gas pumps at

20

our Wailuku police facility.

21

age, wear and tear, they're not working very well,

22

the cost of maintaining them and the ability to

23

maintain them and get parts is dwindling, so, you

24

know, we're hoping to put new gas pumps in that

25

area.

Pretty much on its last

We can't maintain it anymore.

We'll have to

The life of the car wash was ten years,

Just due to, again,
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We're hoping to use some of this money,

1

for parking lot enhancement.

It's really

2

30,000,

3

not parking lot, but our in-town lot is

4

insufficient, the amount of space we have there.

5

you've been down to the station, you'll see the

6

wrecked cars allover the place.

7

and expand that, the impound lot a little so it will

8

give us some additional space to keep the vehicles

9

that we bring into the station.

10

If

We're going to try

We need to do some locker renovation at the

11

Wailuku facility,

locker room renovations.

The

12

building -- again, the building is 20 years old and

13

just in need of some upgrades, new lockers,

14

painting, those type of things, and that's in our

15

three different locker rooms.

16

general office renovation at the police station that

17

we'd like to continue and try and finish and some

18

renovation at the Lahaina Police Station that needs

19

to be done.

And we have some

20

So that added up -- those projects we're

21

asking{ again, for the 300,000 in Countywide to

22

handle all of those projects, and probably some

23

others that come up during the year that we haven't

24

planned on.

25

The 275 -- 275,000 -- oh, I'm sorry, I better
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1

stick to this.

2

the letter that I sent you, it's -- what I'm asking

3

is that we're able to switch projects.

4

that we had listed on that microwave link was to

5

replace one of our microwave

6

microwave links from Wailuku up to Haleakala.

7

were able to get Homeland Security money and do

8

that, or we will be doing it, but we got the funding

9

for that from Homeland Security.

10

Yeah, the microwave link project,

The project

our outdated
We

So we'd like to change that project and still

11

ask for the 275,000 to use on Molokai for the link

12

between Puu Nana and Maunaloa.

13

new microwave link.

14

probably explain why we need these links, but

15

basically it's to upgrade it to equipment that we

16

can maintain now.

17

getting difficult to find parts for.

18

upgrade it from analogue to digital, which is the

19

direction our radio system will be going to in the

20

next few years hopefully.

21

continue and ask for that money and just change it

22

to Molokai rather than the other link.

23

And the last

That also needs a

And if -- Jeff Amaral can

The old equipment is -- it's
We'll also

So we would like to

the last project there is $4

24

million to purchase a morgue facility.

25

Wailuku our morgue room, which is at the Maui
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1

Memorial Hospital, is outdated and not large enough.

2

It can't meet the demands of our community at this

3

time.

4

like to be able to purchase a facility and renovate

5

it to house our morgue.

6

who's here, who assists our medical examiner,

7

testified this morning about that project.

10
11

And I think Burt Freeland,

And I guess that's a summary of our projects,

8
9

I think we've just outgrown it, and so we'd

and we'll be happy to answer any questions.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Chief.
Before I recognize any of the Members,

12

regarding the morgue purchase and renovations, I

13

know you have a figure of $3 million for land

14

acquisition and another million dollars for

15

construction.

16

this morning that one of the options -- and I'm just

17

wondering if this has anything to do with the

18

figures that you provide, is to purchase the

19

Clinical Laboratory's 7,000-square-foot facility in

20

The Millyard in Wailuku?

21

that story that there's been no appraisal or formal

22

negotiations for the sale.

23

It was mentioned in the Advertiser

And that they point out in

With that information being given to the

24

public, can you tie that in to what your intentions

25

are for the land acquisition, as well as to the
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1

construction component, just give a little bit more

2

information, please.

3

MR. L. GINOZA:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

MR. L. GINOZA:

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Ginoza.
It's listed as land acquisition because

6

there's really lack of any other description that's

7

available to us in our program.

8

to be the building and land.

9
10
11

CHAIR KANE:

I'm sorry, say that last part again, it's

intended to be what?
MR. L. GINOZA:

12

land.

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

intended to be the building where?
MR. L. GINOZA:

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

MR. L. GINOZA:

18

CHAIR KANE:

20

MR. L. GINOZA:

24
25

Yes.

For $3 million plus the construction of a

million.

23

The building and the land.

The building and the land?

19

22

It is intended to be the building and the

I'm sorry, it must be my hearing, Mr. Ginoza,

15

21

So it is intended

The construction of a million is the

renovation costs
CHAIR KANE:

j

Renovation.

or estimated renovation costs.
Chief, any additional comments,

no, in this area?
MR. PHILLIPS:

NOr

only that we -- you know, we have not

negotiated with anyone yet on the purchase of any
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facility.

2

facility did not come from the Police Department for

3

that -- I didn't see the article, but we simply told

4

them that we believe we need a new morgue facility.

5

And whether or not it's any particular facility,

6

didn't comment on that.

7
8
9

10

11

CHAIR KANE:

The information on any particular

I

Okay, thank you, Chief.
Members, I'll open it up for questions.

Any

questions, Members, on any of the CIP requests from
the Department of Police?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Mr. Mateo.

Chairman, thank you very much.

And,

12

Chairman, perhaps this question can

13

probably assist.

14

request for the 60,000 for the replacement of the

15

various coils, I don't know if this should really be

16

a CIP project versus a maintenance cost item,

17

because this is an ongoing, yearly based on

18

equipment that already exists on the facility.

19

perhaps at some later time Staff could kind of

20

provide me with clarification whether this is a CIP

21

versus a maintenance request.

22

Staff can

When you take a look at the first

So

The other question, Chairman, would be -- I'm

23

sorry, to Chief, for your Kihei station, has the

24

location been identified already or is that

25

something that comes after your planning design?
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3

MR. PHILLIPS:

on County property in Kihei.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay, thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

4

5

No, we have -- we have a location, and it's

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

And we'll go ahead and forward a

6

question, Mr. Mateo, or we'll have a discussion with

7

Mr. Ginoza, and I think during our deliberations

8

we'll decide where the best fit is for that coil

9

replacement.
Mr. Molina.

10

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

12

Good afternoon, Chief.

13

microwave radio link upgrade.

14

this upgrade, this will be within East Maui, West

15

Maui, Molokai, and Lanai, I would presume, and are

16

there any -- any of those areas might -- may not

17

receive any adequate reception that you can think of

18

at this point?

19

MR. PHILLIPS:

Question on the
Will this -- I guess

The reception -- the radio reception has

20

greatly improved from

- of course from our last -

21

with this 800.

22

better pipe.

23

run data as well as the voice through this system.

24

Our initial IT project we will be leasing that

25

ability, that wireless ability, but eventually we

What this will do is give us a
I think for the future we may want to
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1

want to build our own infrastructure, and this will

2

be the next step towards that, the ability to run

3

the data and the voice over the same microwave link.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Any other parts of the

5

county at this point that may also have a reception

6

problem?

7

MR. PHILLIPS:

Jeff, you want to -- or, Walt, do you want to

8
9
10

Yeah, there are some areas.

comment on the areas we're working on?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

I guess I could presume that that's

11

something you folks have in mind of upgrading in the

12

future?

13

MR. PHILLIPS:

14

CHAIR KANE:

15
16
17

Yes.
We'll have the Captain go to the podium,

Members.
MR. PHILLIPS:

They're the ones working on this issue

every day, so I think they're pretty up to date.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

19

CHAIR KANE:

20
21
22
23

Captain

l

Okay.
if you can identify yourself for the

record, please.
MR. AMARAL:

Captain Jeff Amaral with the Maui Police

Department.
Regarding that question for the 275, yeah, we

24

have about 24 different microwave links throughout

25

the County on three of our islands and also on the
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1

island of Hawaii that gives us the capacity to carry

2

payload between two points.

3

upgrade, it's not really to improve reception per

4

se, but it's to give us the back office ability to

5

carry the voice and data payloads between two

6

points.

So as far as this radio

And right now what we're facing is that our

7

8

microwave system is nearly ten years old.

9

analogue system.

It's antiquated.

It's an

It's getting to

10

the point where we're having difficulty in getting

11

parts and service support.

12

getting into that critical stage that we have to

13

start upgrading these back room pipes, I call it, to

14

carry the payload between two points and then get it

15

back to 911 center.

16
17
18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

So we're -- we're

Is this something more based on a

digital system, I guess, or something -MR. AMARAL:

Yeah, we're looking at upgrading into

19

digital{ what we call DS-3 capacity, which will

20

allow us to carry out a lot more digital voice data

21

and just normal data back and forth, which is how

22

society's moving with, of course, the improvement of

23

Internet and photography and video and so forth that

24

we may want to be sharing between our different

25

stations and even our mobile units in the field when
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we get to that point.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chair.

3

4

Thank you.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Captain, if you will, because we're looking

5

6

at the page in our program for microwave link radio

7

upgrade, and in light of your comments, this seems

8

like it's not going to be just for this upcoming

9

fiscal year, that it's going to be an ongoing

10
11

upgrade project.
MR. AMARAL:

Is that correct?

Basically, yes.

Just to give you a little

12

bit of background, through Homeland Defense we have

13

been getting some of the segments funded for

14

upgrades.

15

contract execution any day now.

16

for two additional -- well, actually three

17

additional links set up that need to be upgraded,

18

which did not include the letter that the Chief sent

19

in on Friday to move that 275 from the Haleakala

20

project to the Molokai project.

21

salvage whatever we can until we can get to the

22

point that all 24 or so of these legs have been

23

upgraded to digital capacity.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Currently I have three of them in for
We also got funded

So we're trying to

Thank you, Chief and Captain.

If we can

request that you work with the Budget Director to
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1

provide us with an updated sheet that the body can

2

use when we go into deliberations and that we can

3

identify over the six-year Capital Improvement

4

Program period what we intend to see over the period

5

of time versus right now.

6

particular Wailuku -- or, excuse me, the Haleakala

7

upgrade on a single year appropriation.

8

to see the bigger picture and the longer term

9

funding needs.

10

MR. PHILLIPS:

11

CHAIR KANE:

It's showing that one

We'd like

Sure.
And also, if you can, help us understand --

12

because you received Homeland Security funds, and

13

you're asking for this as well, I guess the question

14

would be, then, if you can accomplish both work

15

projects in the same fiscal year?

16

going to have two projects ongoing instead of one

17

for the same issue of upgrading, can that be

18

accomplished?

19

don't have any history of what it takes to get it

20

accomplished.

21

MR. AMARAL:

Now that you're

And we ask the question because we

Captain.

As far as getting it accomplished during the

22

fiscal year, that would not be a problem.

23

the links upgraded, we can do.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Getting

Okay, thank you.
Members, any further questions in this area?
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Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you very much.

In

3

regards to the microwave links between the 24 sites,

4

should one go down or several go down, do we have

5

any backup plans in regards to rerouting some of

6

this I guess transmission?

7

MR. AMARAL:

Yeah, a lot of our capacities is based on an

8

A-B structure.

9

reverts to B.

If the A side of it goes down, it
Naturally if we lost a tower or

10

something, that would create some problems that we

11

would have to put plans into action, but all of our

12

sites are backed up not only with what we call an A

13

radio but a B radio also.

14

As far as what we're also trying to do with

15

this digital project is to have a loop system so

16

that if any part of a component fails at a site,

17

that the rest of the loop would be backed up and

18

still continue to carry back to our 911 center.

19

Mr. Pontanilla, I know based on your background in

20

some of this we do have that capacity built into

21

what we're trying to do.

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Good.

So,

In regards to the future

23

plans between -- when the Kihei office comes up, is

24

there a possibility of going probably fiber optic

25

point to point?
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MR. AMARAL:

We are -- one of the projects that I have

2

funded through the Fed side of the house is going to

3

be connectivity using fiber optic between our

4

facility up on the top of the hill and another State

5

facility and then riding that State asset down to --

6

or point or demarkation down here at the 911 center.

7

So we are looking at ways

8

our own County assets, we are looking at ways to

9

share infrastructure with our State partners who

not only do we change

10

have some very good microwave facilities in areas

11

close by, along with some of the private sector

12

utilities that we're looking at also in sharing in

13

order to reduce some of our costs, but that's going

14

to be one of our first privately owned fiber optic

15

connectivity that we'll be working on.

16

working -- in fact we're working on that

17

specification right now on that project.

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

19
20

Good.

And we're

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

in this area?

Any further questions, Members,

Hearing none.

22

Captain Amaral, thank you very much.

23

Chair has a question for you, Chief, and

24

perhaps you can help us understand.

The Department

25

probably uses as their project -- uses consultants
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1

for their large projects; is that correct?

2

you have an in house --

3
4

5

MR. PHILLIPS:

NOr

typically we hire a consultant on a

large project.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

The smaller projects, or the jobs, who

6

takes care of these?

7

takes care of that?

8
9

Or do

MR. PHILLIPS:

Is it like Captain Hudson

Yes r Captain Hudson would work with the

Commanders in the area that the project is going to

10

be, and we also have -- we had a building

11

maintenance person that was very knowledgeable about

12

CIP.

13

in private.

14

the job now, trying to train him.

15

Captain Hudson.

16

That person has left, though, for better pay

CHAIR KANE:

So we have another one.

Chief.

18

it may be more operational.
MR. PHILLIPS:

20

CHAIR KANE:

But he works with

We may come up with just a few questions,

17

19

He's learning

So if you can anticipate,

just to understand

Sure.
But since we're talking about the CIP and the

21

projects and management of the projects, we'll just

22

try to get a better understanding of what role

23

Captain Hudson plays on the smaller projects and

24

then how you folks deal with the bigger projects

25

well.

So we'll formulate some questions in that
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area for you to respond to later.

2

Finally, Members, any questions in this area

3

with the Police Department?

Hearing none, Members,

4

again, if there's any questions, you can either have

5

them sent to Staff or you can have them ready and

6

we'll tie it into operations.
The final question, Chief, and I know this

7
8

kind of reaches into -- I don't know if it's going

9

to reach into operations, but because of your

10

comments earlier about your space constraints

11

already becoming apparent at the existing Wailuku

12

station, and because you folks are looking at

13

expanding down into Kihei with the station down

14

there, was there any talk of relocating any existing

15

function, as an example, like the 911 center, out of

16

Wailuku and going down into the Kahului -- excuse

17

me,

18

build or, you know, anticipate future growth?

19

into the Kihei station where you're going to

MR. PHILLIPS:

We did have a lot of those thoughts until

20

we got the initial cost estimate of what that

21

station was going to be in Kihei, which came back at

22

somewhere around -- when we asked them to look at

23

the possibility of moving

24

communications or setting up a backup communication

25

site, a backup EOC for the County, some training

either moving
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1

space, some parking structures for some of our

2

specialized vehicles, when we asked -- kind of did a

3

wish list of that particular consultant, that price

4

tag came back at $64 million, so we had to send it

5

back and ask them to trim.

6

back to a real basic police station without some of

7

those moves.
So we'll have to look at -- that's -- you

8
9

And so now we're just

know, if we are able to purchase and renovate a

10

morgue, we think that would actually free up some

11

space as well at the Wailuku facility.

12

able to move our lab out of the Wailuku Police

13

Station and renovate that into other office space as

14

needed, stuff like that.

15

tag is probably not going to work out.

16

CHAIR KANE:

Very good.

We may be

But the Kihei -- the price

Is the $18 million bond figure

17

that's represented in the Fiscal Year '08, is that a

18

low figure at this point?

19

MR. PHILLIPS:

It's low, yeah.

We're probably looking

20

at -- I think after we did the basic/ you know,

21

police station, came back at an estimate of 25

22

million.

23

the design people on board and hopefully, you know,

24

get a better idea of what that budget is going to

25

need.

So, you know, that's why we'd like to get
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CHAIR KANE:

Thanks for your comments, Chief.
Members, final comments?

2

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Member Johnson.

Yes, Chief Phillips.

You reminded

4

me about the Lahaina station too, because I know

5

that that's one of the areas that you're looking to

6

expand with a new facility.

7

conversations with developers I guess specifically,

8

you know,

9

obviously growth is necessitating the expansion of

10

your Department, and then sometimes -- in some way

11

it's substantial expansion due to the influx of new

12

members to the community.

13

opportunity to visit with the developers about how

14

they've done with the Department of Education,

15

coming forward and actually building a facility for

16

you to your standards and then turnkeying it over to

17

you?

18

Have you had

in Kihei, perhaps even in Lahaina, because

Have you had an

Have you --

MR. PHILLIPS:

I haven't had those discussions at this

19

time with any developers.

Lahaina station we

20

renovated -- was it three years

21

while, but we renovated it a few years ago with the

22

hope to keep us in there for about five years.

23

the meantime, we were planning on doing the Kihei

24

station, which has kind of got behind the schedule,

25

so Kihei was the priority because that facility is
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1

actually, you know, not in a good location and way

2

too small.

3

But at some point, yeah, we'll need to look

4

at the Lahaina station, and I don't know that we can

5

renovate the existing facility any more than it is.

6

I think we'd have to look at a new one.

7

that's what it needs, we can do that.

8

talked to developers at this point yet, though,

9

about that.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And if
I haven't

And the only reason I bring that

11

up is because of the substantial costs involved.

12

you look at mitigation for particularly growth, not

13

I guess they're existing, but particularly because

14

there's going to be huge -- there already has been

15

huge growth in Kihei and there's anticipated growth

16

in West Maui, we -- I know I've heard the Mayor say

17

he's looking at possibly either impact fees or

18

developers coming forward and helping to offset

19

these huge increases.

20

personnel, but it's actually the facilities

21

themselves, so

22

MR. PHILLIPS:

If

Because it's not only a

Absolutely, and, you know t I'm not sure if

23

it's -- that would be my place to have those

24

discussions or someone from the Administration, but

25

I thinkt yeah, we probably need to do that in the
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1

near future and start looking at -- and planning

2

what we're going to do in Lahaina.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Mr. Chair, I would be really

4

interested, and perhaps if we could send a

5

communication, then, to the Administration to see if

6

they're moving in this direction.

7

have heard the Mayor speak about these kinds of

8

impacts needing to be mitigated, and not just our

9

traffic and parks and that type of thing, so I would

Because I know I

10

appreciate having some indication where the

11

Administration is going with this.

12

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Anderson -- excuse me, Ms. Johnson, if

13

you could work with our Staff to get a letter that

14

we can get sent out for timely response, I'd

15

appreciate your assistance with that.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

CHAIR KANE:

Absolutely.

Okay, thank you.

Thank you very much.

Any questions for the Chief

18

or Captain Hudson or any of the resource personnel

19

here in the chamber?

Seeing none.

Chief, thank you very much.

20
21

MR. PHILLIPS:

22

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Captain Hudson, to all of you, thank you.

23

Appreciate you folks being here this afternoon.

24

Okay, Members, we're moving right along.

25

Next we have Mr. Gen I inuma , our Civil Defense
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1

Coordinator in the house, and I believe that we have

2

with him, to assist specifically on the project that

3

we have available, I'm anticipating that we have

4

Mr. Jacob Verkerke from MIS that's related to the

5

project that Mr. Iinuma's going to be talking about.

6

So, please, Mr. Verkerke, please come

7

forward.
We'll take a moment, Mr. Iinuma, to get

8
9

Mr. Verkerke down here.
Members, your handout you have attached to

10

11

that single page cover handout, the 300,000.

12

Mr. Ginoza, go ahead and give us some

13
14
15
16

comments.
MR. L. GINOZA:

respective Departments.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay, thank you.
Mr. I inuma , good afternoon.

17
18

I'd just like to refer this issue to the

MR. IINUMA:

Good afternoon, Chair, Members of the

19

Council.

Thank you very much for allowing me to

20

participate this afternoon in these discussions.

21

Before you you have a brief summary of what we're

22

trying to do with the Civil Defense project on

23

communications network.

24

coming fiscal year is $300,000, and as you can see

25

from the description in the brief, that this is for

The expenditure looking for
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a communication network design and update.

2

You heard from Captain Amaral from Maui

3

Police Department about the communications network,

4

and basically the Civil Defense's role is to look at

5

the entire communication network for the County.

6

And certainly the Police Department, because of

7

their expertise and because the system resides with

8

them, is critical to the discussions.

9

working very closely with Captain Amaral, with the

So I've been

10

Chief, and Walter Pacheco, who is in the audience to

11

look at the situation.

12

is to look at the existing system and to evaluate

13

what its current function is and how we can better

14

design what's critically needed for the upcoming

15

years.

The 300,000 we're looking at

And this is based on what Captain Amaral

16
17

shared with you, which is the system is antiquated,

18

obsolete, and the kinds of parts and maintenance

19

needed is becoming extremely difficult to contend

20

with.

21

price tag of somewhere in the neighborhood from best

22

estimates around $34 million.

23

looking at is to look at it in terms of what's

24

happened around the nation and in the world with the

25

communication efforts and how it's really been --

The overall system is really looking at a

And what we're
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1

the failure of or the absence of good communication

2

has not fared well for how we as a County might

3

manage emergency situations.

4

I also would like to see at this time, too,

5

that while Mr. Verkerke is here with us, that this

6

is not a redundant system.

7

excuse me, it is a redundant system.

8

at how can we best serve our communication needs,

9

not only the emergency situations, but ongoing,

It's not -- I mean,
We're looking

10

day-to-day issues.

11

the MIS request, which is before you today.

12

let Mr. Verkerke speak to that.

13

there and ask for any questions.

14
15
16

CHAIR KANE:

And it's really separate from
I'll

I'll just stop

Okay, and just for clarification, did you say

3 to 4 million or did you say 34 million?

MR. IINUMA:

The entire system, if we need to really get

17

it up to snuff with where we'd like to go with it,

18

would fall into the neighborhood of about $34

19

million.

20

CHAIR KANE:

$34 million?

21

MR. IINUMA:

Yes.

22

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza, we need your assistance again in

23

this area where there wasn't a prior appropriation.

24

There's a current request of 300,000 and a future

25

request of 2.7 million.

I think this body deserves
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1

a better understanding of a six-year capital

2

improvement in this project, and if it's going to be

3

in that neighborhood, then hopefully we can get an

4

accurate reflection of the comments that were just

5

made by our Coordinator.

6

MR. L. GINOZA:

Can you respond, please?

My understanding was the request was for

7

initial -- an initial $3 million for improvement to

8

the communication systems, and that's subject to the

9

review in the design and update portion of the
So the balance of the 34 million has not

10

300,000.

11

been budgeted in so much as{ you know, it hasn't

12

been determined that the 34 million is necessary

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

MR. L. GINOZA:

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

19

at this point.

Okay, thank you.

Thank you, for your

comments.
Members, questions in this area for

17
18

Okay.

Mr. Iinuma?

Mr. Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you

t

Mr. Chairman.

Good afternoon Mr. Iinuma.

20
21

MR. IINUMA:

Good afternoon.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

This type of system that you're

23

looking at implementing, what other jurisdictions

24

have this type of system that you're looking at and

25

what kind of parts, as far as how is this type of
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system working in other places?
MR. IINUMA:

Wellt what we're doing is we're using this

3

particular -- what the allocation is for the 300 t OOO

4

is really to look at where we are right now in

5

evaluation.

6

an opportunity for professionals to come out and

7

fully evaluate the system.

8

information t you know t provided by the folks who

9

have to maintain it on a day-to-day basis t and in

We have some ideat but we haven't had

I'm taking the

10

terms of what's available and what's being used t

11

there are a number of systems around nationallYt and

12

what we're hoping to do in the design phase is best

13

practices and current available technology.

14

As you're aware t technology changes day to

15

daYt and this particular issue is to get us through

16

we're hoping maybe the next decade t if at all

17

possible t on the top end t butt againt this is really

18

to look at the evaluation of it and to look at

19

designing of a system that will be optimal for

20

especially a three-island communitYt if not

21

four-island with Kahoolawe.

22

also, tOOt as Captain Amaral spoke earlier, is that

23

a critical need for us in terms of an area, East

24

Maui and Hana t is to be able to bounce a link from

25

the Big Island, Kahua Ranch, and partner up with

And taking in mind
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1

existing systems so that we can utilize their

2

carrier network and to interface with their

3

technology.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

And your timetable for having a

5

system like this, you're looking at hopefully three

6

to four years?

7

MR. IINUMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

9
10

Well, are you saying life of the system?
No, to actually get a system like

this implemented eventually.
MR. IINUMA:

Well, I think if we can

you know, given

11

the funding stream, as soon as we can get it going,

12

my understanding is we could get at least a good

13

design within the -- within the next year, and if we

14

can get the funding to support design, it should be

15

up very shortly after.

16

more than a year after that, at least to get the

17

basic foundation laid out.

18

Pacheco can speak more to that, but is that pretty

19

clear?

20

Okay, thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

23

area, Members?

24

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

25

And I think Walter

Yeah.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

21

22

I don't envision it being

Any further questions in this

Mr. Mateo.
Chairman, thank you.

Mr. Iinuma, then when your people come in to
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design the system, considerations had been -- will

2

be given that these are very different islands

3

separated by water, yeah?

4

MR. IINUMA:

Oh, absolutely.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Because part of the difficulty with

6

the communications is just that, communications fail

7

during emergency and disasters, so, you know, like

8

the difficulty in realizing that there really is a

9

fail safe system kind of is farfetched to believe

10

because of the separation that we have as a natural

11

barrier in providing the link.

12

hoping that in your plans, you are going to be

13

working with the respective island communities who

14

are in processes of developing their preparedness

15

measures so that they can be incorporated in the

16

plan and this is not a Maui island type of take it

17

or leave it type of a system that the neighbor

18

islands will have to contend with.

19

MR. IINUMA:

So 11m kind of

If I'm hearing you correct, you're talking

20

about a three-island community that's going to --

21

excuse me, but the job of Civil Defense is to look

22

at the entire County, not one single island, and so

23

when we look at our plans and operation, we consider

24

an entire County, and all of our partners go along

25

with it.

So absolutely, all of these needs are
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always taken into consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

No, I do know your job is to take a

3

look at the whole County.

4

have three very different communities, Mr. Gen, that

5

warrants ample considerations in your planning for

6

the entire County.

7

MR. IINUMA:

B

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

9

MR. IINUMA:

10

12

That's--

Absolutely.
what I'm saying.

Absolutely.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

11

What I'm saying is we

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Mateo.

13

Any further questions for Mr. Iinuma on this

14

project, the question is for 300,000 for this cycle

15

with an anticipated $2.7 million request for Fiscal

16

Year

Hearing none.

'OB.

17

Why don't we go ahead with Mr. Verkerke on

IB

behalf of MIS and the Department of Management on

19

your other handout, Members, I believe that was

20

given to you by Mr. Ginoza.

21

Mr. Ginoza?

22

MR. L. GINOZA:

23

CHAIR KANE:

Is that correct,

Is that correct, Mr. Chair.

Okay.

And Mr. Pacheco is also here if

24

there's any additional questions for technical

25

components, we'd appreciate his expertise, and so,
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1

Members, he's here as well to provide any responses

2

to questions.

3
4

Good afternoon t Mr. Verkerke.
MR. VERKERKE:

Good afternoon, Chair.

Good afternoon,

5

Members.

6

funding under the CIP budget considerations is

7

called the Wi-MAX Wireless Network Infrastructure.

8

Wi-MAX is a wireless infrastructure that is

9

technologically advanced over the typical wireless

10

that you may be familiar with in shopping centers,

11

airports, and similar facilities.

12

greater throughput, in other words data can go

13

through an infrastructure like that.

14

wider range of coverage per transmitter.

15

more advanced technology that will be able to

16

mitigate some of the line of sight constraints other

17

wireless technologies are faced with.

18

The one project that we're asking for

It offers a

It offers a
It offers

We look at that as an opportunity to both

19

expand the reach of our existing wired network

20

infrastructure.

21

beneficiary of a very generous cooperative

22

arrangement with Time Warner Cable Television.

23

have built a very extensive fiber optic network on

24

all three islands

25

islands that are not adequately covered for our

As you will know, we've been the

t

but still there's areas on all
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1

needs, especially in situations where there is some

2

kind of a civil emergency.

3

fiber optic infrastructure have less than the

4

optimal redundancy that we would like to have, so

5

this wireless infrastructure could very well remedy

6

both aspects.

7

Some aspects of the

The County's been approached by two

8

commercial entities to see if there's an interest in

9

their development of a Wi-MAX infrastructure.

It's

10

all been very preliminary.

11

on the part of the County in discussions that I've

12

had with Mr. Iinuma, with Mr. Pacheco, with

13

representatives of the Water Department who all have

14

a keen interest in the development of this

15

capability.

16

have pointed out some concerns about the

17

reliability, availability of a system that would be

18

provided by commercial entities.

19

these concerns cannot be addressed adequately in a

20

timely fashion, we would like to have the ability to

21

take the initiative to build the infrastructure for

22

our own use during upcoming fiscal year.

23

There are some concerns

These concerns -- these discussions

So in case that

The requested amount will probably provide 10

24

to 13 transmission sites on the three islands.

25

range of the transmissions is supposed to be up to
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1

26 miles of the transmission sites!

so it should be

2

adequate to bridge the gap between the islands and

3

provide us with an opportunity to tie into the

4

infrastructure that MIS manages, the fiber optic,

5

that the Police Department manages, and

6

where the microwave office -- microwave facilities.

on the

So we're looking to build yet another layer

7
8

of redundancy.

This is going to be mostly focused

9

on the data transmission, not so much on voice

10

transmission, but technology will allow us to cross

11

over if necessary.

12

told me that in briefings that he received on recent

13

disasters like Katrina and the tsunami problems that

14

the greatest issue was the maintenance and the

15

restoration of communications, and I think that the

16

county of Maui would be wise to consider that in its

17

approach to this whole problem of managing civil

18

problems or civil emergencies, I should say.

19
20

CHAIR KANE:

I think Mr. Iinuma can

he has

Thank you, Mr. Verkerke.
Members, before I open the floor on the -- on

21

the handout, under Operating Impact! there's a

22

comment on the last sentence that reads,

23

maintenance fees for the equipment would need to be

24

added to the Operations Budget."

25

"Annual

Mr. Ginoza! is there a place that that's
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1

being specifically identified to correlate with this

2

CIP request, or is that something that we're not

3

having to deal with now that's going to be in the

4

future?

5

Mr. Verkerke, you can respond as well,

6

please.

7

MR. VERKERKE:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

This would be for future budgets.
Okay.

So it's not something that's in a

current budget request?

10

MR. VERKERKE:

11

CHAIR KANE:

That's correct.
$725,000,

then, is for -- where it's listed

12

under Other Equipment, is there a breakdown

13

specifically of the type of equipment that's going

14

to be needed, Mr. Verkerke, you know, whether it's

15

computers or hardware, can you give us a better

16

inclination of what kind of equipment we're talking

17

about?

18

MR. VERKERKE:

Mostly we're talking about the equipment

19

necessary on the transmitter sites, like on towers

20

on top of County facilities.

21

transceivers appropriate for this technology that we

22

would locate.

23

this network would connect up with the existing

24

fiber optic infrastructure and with existing

25

microwave infrastructure, so some gateway equipment,

So these would be

There would be a few points where
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1

mostly telecommunications equipment, but the bulk of

2

this is for transmission sites and preliminary

3

estimates.

4

is about 40 to $50,000, including power facilities

5

and the like.

6

CHAIR KANE:

Estimates suggest that the cost per site

Can you tell us the general type of

7

information that's going to be transmitted in these

8

areas, and based on the response the level of

9

firewall implementation to protect that information

10

from

11

have to contend with, Mr. Verkerke?

12

from breach?

MR. VERKERKE:

Is there any issues there we

Mr. Chair, the design of the wireless

13

network would definitely require that all the

14

communications are encrypted, that authentication is

15

required

16

also by the connected equipment, that it's

17

recognized and identified within the security table

18

of the overall system so that access will be denied

19

to people that are not authorized and equipment that

20

is not authorized to connect up.

21

somebody manage to breach that, then the layer of

22

encryption should prevent actual data loss of our

23

interception of data.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

l

both by the user and typically nowadays

Okay.

Should somehow

The final question is, now, you talk

about -- or in the description and justification of
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1

the worksheet it talks about viability and

2

feasibility for the County and it actually says that

3

the implementing technology appears to be very

4

viable and feasible for the County of Maui.

5

In the event that this is something that the

6

body does not consider this time around, can you

7

provide us with some information as to what kind of

8

costs we would be continuing to incur if we decided

9

not to go with this program?

In other words, I'm

10

trying to get you focused in on the viability and

11

the feasibility component and with the lack of this

12

program, where would we be?

13

MR. VERKERKE:

We would continue to be in a situation

14

where people out in the field that have the need for

15

data when they're not near a wired site, a wired

16

location on a fiber optic network would have

17

difficulties obtaining such data.

18

technologies available similar to cell phone

19

technology where somebody with handheld devices

20

could connect up to our network.

21

rates and the reliability would be -- have proven to

22

be such that it's really not a very workable

23

solution.

24

technology and coverage in areas where a Civil

25

Defense emergency, brush fires, are more -- might

There are

The transmission

We depend on commercial providers of that
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1

occur are typically not very close to populated

2

areas, so there's always a bit of an issue there.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, Mr. Iinuma, if you can give us a

4

follow-up and maybe some detailed examples of how

5

this type of project can enhance your folks'

6

functionality.

7

MR. IINUMA:

Well, certainly.

In respect to protection of

8

life and property, timely, accurate information is

9

going to guide whatever services we provided to the

10

public.

When we're in the field and if we're having

11

responders in the field that need to have a certain

12

piece of equipment, that they need to have certain

13

kinds of data to assist them -- let me give you an

14

idea, such as like in a critical situation, say, as

15

recently as the flood in -- that devastated Kauai,

16

where there was loss of life, if there's an

17

opportunity for people to provide the kind of data

18

that said this is happening, this is what we're

19

dealing with, this is what we need in terms of

20

equipment, is there a way where we could get

21

electronic

22

the field and be able to provide that kind of

23

information in a timely way, certainly it would be

24

advantageous to rescuers and responders, such as the

25

numbers of water pumps we need to pump out a certain

a base for what we're dealing with in
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1

dam or what kind of equipment we need to shore it up

2

to make it safe for people down stream.

3

example.

That's an

In the area of a flood, a major -- excuse me,

4
5

a major fire, what kinds of pieces of equipment we

6

need, what's available there, what's on our

7

inventory, all of these kind of things.

8

available in the field, where an individual does not

9

have to go to a land line and hook up, it would be

If it's

10

critical.

11

biological issues, where we have numbers of

12

situations occurring not by the central point but

13

coming on into different kinds of areas, such as

14

avian flu, pandemic flu, where we can get

15

information out about how many cases are coming up,

16

what kind of medications do we need, how many field

17

people do we need and so forth,

18

expedite our response in a critical way.

19
20

CHAIR KANE:

If we're looking at it in terms of

that would also

Thank you, Mr. Iinuma.
Members, questions in any of the areas, both

21

for Civil Defense as well as with MIS?

22

Mr. Pontanilla.

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you very much.

I was

24

wondering if we could have a diagram of the network

25

that, you know, you folks talking about?
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1

mention was made about ten to 13 transmission sites,

2

possible maximum of 26 miles apart.

3

looking for is, you know, how is the network

4

designed.

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

MR. VERKERKE:

What I'm

Mr. Verkerke.
Mr. Chair, at this point the design hasn't

7

really proceeded to the point where we have that

8

network defined.

9

discussions with engineers from venders of this type

Our discussions -- our initial

10

of equipment have suggested that number of

11

transmission sites should provide the kind of

12

coverage we hope to provide, but the specific

13

locations are really dependent on a close look at

14

the topography of the islands, make sure that we do

15

provide the best uninterfered with communication

16

path between the potential recipients and the

17

locations.

18

you an idea of where we think this is going to bel

19

but to be quite honest, that is still subject to

20

some change.

So I -- in the general area I can give

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

22

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

Would it correlate with what the

23

police are looking at at the repeater sites or

24

existing sites?

25

indication, since it seems that your previous

Would that give us at least some
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response indicated you folks would be utilizing and

2

enhancing these areas as sites for incorporating the

3

network?

4

MR. VERKERKE:

The design work would definitely start with

5

the existing locations and assess if indeed all of

6

them are viable locations providing us with the type

7

of coverage that we are looking for.

8

cases where existing locations couldn't provide that

9

would we look at establishing new locations.

So only in

10

CHAIR KANE:

Further questions, Members?

11

MR. IINUMA:

Let me do a follow-up too on that also.

12

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Iinuma.

13

MR. IINUMA:

As we look at the design and evaluation,

14

there are existing sites that are not part of the

15

County system too, and we're hopeful that in our

16

evaluation and design process, the ones that are

17

existing from other partner agencies, such as State,

18

the Department of Land and Natural Resources, the

19

Federal government, and other entities, we could

20

work together and to have a, you know, more robust

21

kind of system using the

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24
25

Okay, thank you.

sting partnerships.
Mr. Pontanilla.

Thank you, Chair.

Should the -- you know, some of the
government agencies don't go out long with this
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1

network, I note here that there's a possibility of

2

going into partnership with the University of Hawaii

3

system.

4

MR. lINUMA:

Can you explain that?
From my brief understanding in the total

5

design, and I'm looking at a system that they're

6

trying to bring on line, which is called HWIN,

7

Hawaii Wireless Interoperability Network, these

8

considerations are presently on the table and being

9

discussed.

You know, we haven't gotten -- I haven't

10

gotten to that point basically because, well, just

11

lacking the staff to focus on that particular area.

12

But certainly, again, that's the reason why

13

we put in the request is to look at having an

14

outside entity do this kind of ground work for us to

15

look at, you know, the viability of it.

16

small community and talking story with -- you know,

17

with Clyde Sakamoto and guys at MCC and other

18

university areas is very, very possible, and some of

19

it has taken place, but I haven't really looked at

20

that, and we ought to.

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

It's a

So the $25,000 in regards for

22

design would basically tell us if this thing is

23

going to move forward, then, before we invest into

24

the equipment?

25

MR. VERKERKE:

I would expect that the design will tell us
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how we will move forward.

2

I've spoken with and that's been helping me out with

3

this shares my confidence that the technology is

4

ready and will work for us.

5

design is going to look at can this be done.

6

will look more at how can we do this and optimize

7

the funding and the results.

8
9

MR. IINUMA:

I think everybody that

So I don't think the
It

And, excuse me, I'm -- apples and oranges.

When you asked the question, I really was looking at

10

my design.

I'm real Gen-centric at this point, so I

11

wasn't considering what Jacob was doing with the MIS

12

section.

13

different, you know?

14

looking at systems that are complementary that would

15

add some redundancy, and yet what we're looking at

16

in the Civil Defense arena is not duplicating what

17

MIS is doing.

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

There's

- it's like same thing only
You know what I mean?

Okay.

We're

I was looking more for

19

like a study that's going to be done before, you

20

know, we implement big monies into --

21

MR. lINUMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

23

MR. IINUMA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

25

Absolutely.
a project.

Yeah, certainly.
That was my concern.

you, Chair.
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CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.

Any further

2

questions, Members, in this area?

The $725,000

3

request, Mr. Verkerke, since you're here and because

4

I know you have an availability issue, you may not

5

be able to be talking to us later on in the week or

6

soon because of your extremely busy schedule, I need

7

help to understand how close we are with this,

8

because you're asking for a lot of money and cash,

9

and because of that, you know, we want to make sure

10

that if we're going to put a program like this on

11

line, that we can see some progression of it and not

12

let it sit.

13

history is telling us that there's a lot of things

14

that are sitting because there's a lot of busy

15

people out there and we can't get things moving

16

quite as quickly as we'd like to.

17

And we say that because, you know,

So I want to make sure, and I need you to

18

assure this body, myself and this body, that this is

19

something that if we put there, that you folks can

20

demonstrate some movement.

21

and I can honestly tell you that your responses,

22

based on what's been written here, it doesn't seem

23

like you have a set plan to move forward.

24

the design money of 25,000 that Mr. Pontanilla

25

talked about hopes to achieve that -- that gelling

Because if you can't -
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1

of the plan so that you have -- and I guess that 725

2

is to have that money waiting so you can jump on it

3

as soon as you see that plan.

4

know, how did you arrive at the $725,000 figure

5

when, A, you really haven't had much discussion with

6

the UH folks and their existing system, and B, we

7

really haven't deciphered how our system is going to

8

look beyond the scope of our existing sites that you

9

may utilize to enhance those systems, that network?

Question is, you

10

Mr. Verkerke?

Again, a lot of money.

I know you're

11

in the tech field.

12

costing things, but it's difficult for a lot of

13

people in the public to understand, you know, that

14

area.

15

please.

16

MR. VERKERKE:

I know you deal with high

So help us understand it in simple terms,

Mr. Chair, I appreciate your concern and I

17

want to assure you that I share that concern.

18

is indeed a lot of money to ask for.

19

approached by a number of the

20

commercial entities that have an interest in

21

exploring the opportunities here in the County of

22

Maui, I've gotten a pretty good sense of the typical

23

costs per node and I have gotten a pretty good sense

24

of the amount of effort involved in starting up the

25

build out of an infrastructure like this.

524-2090

In having been

a couple of
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1

I feel confident that within the 18-month

2

window of the CIP funding we can get this project

3

started.

4

impression that we'll complete it all in that time

5

frame.

6

over a longer time, I wouldn't have any major

7

objections to that.

8

is available, we would be able to wrap up the

9

design, with the assistance, in about a little over

I do not want to leave this body with the

If it's the body's wish to spread this out

I think that once the funding

If we have to find permission for

10

six months.

11

locations that we do not control, we can go ahead

12

and build out locations where we do control and move

13

those to the end of the build-out cycle.

14

confident in presenting to you now that we will

15

indeed at the end of the CIP 18-month window, we

16

will have capability out there.

17

just said, I do not want to present to you that we

18

will have completed this infrastructure.

19

CHAIR KANE:

Can I ask you, please

l

So I feel

But, again, as I

and I'm just being

20

frank in my comments, in my question to you, is can

21

you provide us with an adjusted figure?

22

when you're looking at your design and partial of

23

the 725 that would carry you through at least till

24

next fiscal year, and that way come July 1st or the

25

12-month mark, we can look at doing -- we can
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1

integrate the funds together, instead of looking at

2

this on a new program going out 18 months.

3

you've already indicated that there isn't going to

4

be anything beyond until the -- until you have to do

5

the cycle back in -- back in '11 and '12, 2011 and

6

2012,

7

and going into 2008 on the equipment side, and that

8

way you can look at the 12 month and then '08 would

9

be an additional 18 month going out, at least we'd

Because

if you can give us a two-step process for '07

10

have a better handle what the design is, where

11

you're at, and how you're going to progress forward

12

with the site selection, who you're going to be

13

utilizing, if in fact we're going to go into a

14

commercial or if we're going to go partner up with

15

the UH system, just as a plan B for the body's

16

consideration, please.

17
18

MR. VERKERKE:

Of course, Mr. Chair.

I'd be happy to do

that.
My one consideration for asking for all the

19
20

money up front is I want to make sure everybody

21

understands that half a system is as good as no

22

system at all.

23

CHAIR KANE:

No, and it's understood.

So -- but by the

24

same token, I'd like to make sure that this body has

25

the option to take a look at it and, you know,
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1

you're asking for a lot of money up front, and so we

2

understand your issue and I think that this body

3

will take that into consideration as we look at the

4

option between what you have here before us now and

5

option B that would give us a phased in -- a step

6

process.

7

MR. VERKERKE:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

I'd be happy to do that, Mr. Chair.
Thank you very much.

And we'll follow up

with something in writing to make sure you get that

10

request in writing.

Any further question, Members,

11

on either of the requests, the 300,000, followed up

12

with the 2.7, for Mr. Iinuma and Mr. Verkerke's

13

request?

14

additional questions in this area, please feel free

15

to get those questions to us and we'll make sure

16

that these two gentlemen will get those questions in

17

writing through the Budget Director's Office.

Seeing none.

Members, if there are any

Mr. Iinuma, Mr. Verkerke, thank you very

18
19

much.

Appreciate your presence here this afternoon.

20

MR. IINUMA:

Thank you, Chair.

21

CHAIR KANE:

Members.

22

MR. VERKERKE:

23

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
The Chair will not be moving forward with the

24

next Department in light of the size of those, so

25

why don't we go ahead and grab the extra half an
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1

hour -- actually, would have been 15 minutes, since

2

we would have taken a break at this time.

3

take that 15 minutes for our personal needs.

4

go ahead and adjourn this meeting for this

5

afternoon.

So we'll

We are in --

6

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

7

CHAIR KANE:

Kahului.

-- Kahului this evening for the Wailuku,

8

Waihee, Waikapu, and Kahului District meeting.

9

We'll be at the Kahului Community Center.

10

We'll

The main

hall, and it's scheduled for 6:30.

11

Staff, 6:30?

12

Okay, we're going to be down there at 6:30,

13

so we have more than enough time to be utilized for

14

your personal needs.

15

6:30.

16

Okay, so we're down there at

Tomorrow, Members, we're flying out to

17

Molokai to Mr. Mateo's land at the Mitchell Pauole

18

Center, and that will be at 6 o'clock.

19

Thursday the 6th we'll be at the Lanai Community

20

Center social hall, also at 6 o'clock.

21

And then on

Members t tomorrow morning we will pick up

22

with the lineup with Fire, Housing, and Public

23

Works, and goes right into Wastewater and other

24

Public Works/Environmental Management Divisions.

25

Any closing remarks from the Director -- the
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Budget Director?

2

MR. L. GINOZA:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: MA and GRH)

5

6
7
8

ACTION:

CHAIR KANE:

None.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Thank you.

DEFER pending further discussion.

Hearing none.

2006 is adjourned.
ADJOURN:

Any questions or announcements?

This meeting for April 3rd,
(Gavel) .

3: 01 p.m.
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C E R T I F I CAT E

1

2

STATE OF HAWAII

3
4

SS.
CITY AND COUNTY OF MAUl

5

6

I, Jessica R.

Perry, Certified Shorthand Reporter

7

for the State of Hawaii, hereby certify that the

8

proceedings were taken down by me in machine shorthand and

9

was thereafter reduced to typewritten form under my

10

supervision; that the foregoing represents to the best of

11

my ability, a true and correct transcript of the

12

proceedings had in the foregoing matter.

13

I further certify that I am not attorney for any of

14

the parties hereto, nor in any way concerned with the

15

cause.

16
17

DATED this 2nd day of May, 2006, in Honolulu,
Hawaii.
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